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Characteristics of GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.

ERBEXSMAERAA(BIFA)GEMZEE

GEMHES - NRMBLEBEMEBIAM ETHA
AFAEERERBNTPMELRRE—ELD
M5 EERENATETHBRENZE LT
HEERR  AERCEBFEAFNEEELFEH
RERE °

HAGEMEmHWARBEAP/NE » EGEME
ECHSUAEEBRRBERITEREENEHEZ
BRAzHEEEBAR  FERELIRFEGEMEE
HWEZSEERBENTS -

BERXGREENBERRARBIFHARFEZ
ABHTRE  HHEEU L TEMEITTERT
Y - WHEX T T AR E 2 A
BB 17 B I EE A B A (o B % 5 I B T 51 B2 (1]
RLAEFEE -

IR TS 8RR BT GEMFE 25 _F i B ([GEM
_ETARR]) B9 TE T 1 B R 12 B R AR B R
RA[ERFNZEH - AREIZEFE([EF])
R ARG FHER KB RANESI#EZEE T -
BFAEFL— R EBHE - BRREAL
7 ABEFEEHEEEZ L EGEEET
o RERELGFL D - A& EEREN
FE  EUSHAEE A TE (R E LR

o

ZENFFHR HEERERERAR 1



CONTENTS
5 8

3 CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

5  FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MHHR
6  CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE
8  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE @AM
12 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE
25  ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B B REARS

36  DIRECTORS' REPORT
EFgWE

46 PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFkRREEABRE

49  INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN AZBEN S

55 ~ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e Bm kA MEEKER

57  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R MR

59 CONSOLIADATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A RNBEE

61 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HERSRER

63 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A mAME

2 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping (Chairman)
Ms. LI Xia
Mr. CHEN Yin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Tin Faat
Ms. NA Xin
Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. CHAN Hoi Keung Terence

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Hoi Keung Terence
Mr. FOK Wai Man (resigned on 14 August 2019)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. LI Xia
Mr. CHAN Hoi Keung Terence

BERMUDA RESIDENT
REPRESENTATIVES

Codan Services Limited

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAM Tin Faat (Chairman)
Ms. NA Xin
Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LAM Tin Faat (Chairman)
Ms. LI Xia
Ms. NA Xin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LAM Tin Faat (Chairman)
Ms. LI Xia
Ms. NA Xin

HITES
R Sk (/)
FELL
PR

BYFHITES

R E
BRBT 22+
WEELL
BEERI{E
PR o8 &
NAEIME
B 58 5T A
ERENEAE(R-FE—NFENA+HEET)
EERT
TELL

R 58 5T A

BEFREAXR

Codan Services Limited

CHE T
MARERE(ERE)

BRBT 22+
HEEgE izt

FMEE®
MRS & (FE)
Ext
BRBT 22+
REZE®
MR A (FE)
TELL
ARBT 22 1=

ZENFFHR HEERERERAR



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B HE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 B{EZ —E— W F+-A=+—HIFFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—hF —E—RF —FT—+tF —T)\F ZEB-AE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET AT FAT TAT FHT

RESULTS ES

Revenue WA 174,741 104,367 110,174 97,225 98,492
Loss before income tax MBS AT BB (32,991) (45,865) (10,500) (23,210) (14,635)
Income tax expense TSR X (1,566) (390) (371) (41) (79)
Loss for the year FANEE (34,557) (46,255) (10,871) (23,251) (14,714)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE

Total assets BEHET 196,023 149,790 112,445 150,833 141,204
Total liabilities R (71,966) (74,339) (45,906) (42,255) (24,288)
Total equity g it 124,057 75,451 66,539 108,578 116,916
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), it is my
pleasure to present the Annual Report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The outbreak of coronavirus from the beginning of 2020 has
sparked new worries of contraction in luxury product market
amid risk of economy downturn of China in the coming year.

According to reports, sales of watches and jewelry, apparel,
accessories and cosmetics in China has slumped by more than
60% over the last Lunar New Year period. Regardless of signs
that the epidemic has become under control from the start of
March this year, economic activities and consumer confident
may need months to recover. The central government is
working at its best to restore order of the economy but efforts
can be undermined by wrecked overseas markets and disrupted
international trades subsequent to a global pandemic.

While the Group remains optimistic of the recovery of domestic
jewellery market towards the second half year, there are risks
that the continuing prevention measures and quantative policies
could retard the pace of recovery. The Board will be closely
monitoring the development of epidemic and formulate any
strategic plan as appropriate.

In the meantime, conserving liquidity has become one of the
prime targets of the Group. From the third quarter of 2019, the
management has been consciously reducing its investment in
inventories. This adds up with the equity funds of HK$17 million
raised in May 2019 by placement that the cash balances at the
end of 2019 amount to HK$26 million, which are approximately
the same as the amount at the beginning of the year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE®RE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of all Board members, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to the Shareholders and
business partners of the Group for their continued supports and
trust during the past years, and my most sincere appreciation
to the Directors, management and staff at all levels for their
dedication, hard works and contributions to the Group.

Chong Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
12 May 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWR DN

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s loss
attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
HK$14,680,000 (2018: HK$23,668,000).

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to HK$98,492,000 (2018: HK$97,225,000).

The sales of gold and jewellery products and franchise income
contributed to HK$35,331,000 of the Group’s revenue during
the year (2018: HK$16,559,000). The sales of enterprise
software products increased by 6% to HK$27,587,000 (2018:
HK$25,950,000). Revenue on systems integration business
dropped by 36% to HK$2,683,000 (2018: HK$4,188,000) while
revenue on professional services business also dropped by 35%
to HK$32,891,000 (2018: HK$50,528,000).

OPERATION REVIEW

According to The National Bureau of Statistics of China, the
GDP of China was 6.1% in 2019 that it further declined from
6.6% of 2018 and was the slowest pace since 1990.

Gold jewellery demand fell for the first time in three years. The
slowing down economy, prolonged trade disputes and soaring
food prices had crimped consumer discretionary spending and
kept suppressing the world’s biggest gold market. Despite this,
the Group's sales of gold jewellery for 2019 had doubled the
amount of the preceding year to HK$35 million. It contributed to
the success in readjustment of sales strategies which focused
on wholesale businesses in the second half year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWmR DN

For the IT service segment, scale of businesses further
decreased. In late 2019, the management disposed its Shanghai
operations, which had been underperforming for some years.
Although only a small gain was recognized, it alleviated financial
burden brought to the Group by the loss-making operations.
The Directors believed that the disposal would not have impact
on future operations of the segment.

Besides, the Group had successfully raised equity funds of
HK$17 million in May 2019 by placement of 165,000,000 new
ordinary shares under the general mandate granted in the
annual general meeting of 4 June 2018. The funds had been
applied for overheads of the headquarter and working capital of
the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group remained in a strong
financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$25,994,000
(2018: HK$27,131,000).

The Group monitored its capital structure using the gearing ratio
which is net debt divided by total equity. For this purpose, the
Group defined net debt as debt, which comprises long-term and
short-term borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total
equity comprised equity attributable to owners of the Company
and non-controlling interests stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The gearing ratio is not
presented, as the net debt was zero (2018: zero).

TREASURY POLICY

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in
managing the Group's cash and maintaining a strong and
healthy liquidity to ensure that the Group is well placed to take
advantage of future growth opportunities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk was limited
as the Group's transactions, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies were insignificant. The Group
will continue to monitor its foreign currency exposure closely.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's issued shares were
1,947,690,000 shares (2018: 1,782,690,000 shares).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWmR DN

INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION
OR DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
a group of two subsidiaries with total consideration of
HK$100,000, resulting in net gain on disposal of subsidiaries
amounting to HK$308,000.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
other investment and material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have
any material contingent liabilities. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group did not have any material capital commitment (2018:
HK$14,079,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any mortgage or charge over its assets
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the turnover of the
Jewellery Product segment and the IT Products and Services
segments amounted to HK$35,331,000 (2018: HK$16,559,000)
and HK$63,161,000 (2018: HK$80,666,000) respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the number of employees of the
Group was 103 (2018: 276). Remuneration is determined by
reference to market terms and the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. Year-end bonus
based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Gold price per ounce started in 2019 at USD1,282, climbed to
USD1,538 in early September, and closed at US$1,511 at the
end of 2019. It further extended gains in early 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR DN

On the other hard, demand of gold jewellery in China
decreased by 7% to 637 tonnes in 2019. The slowing economy,
rising inflation, global trade disputes, climbing gold prices
would disturb any attempt of recovery. It was expected that
competition among the market participants in China would
remain intense in the coming year.

The countrywide outbreak of coronavirus from the beginning of
2020 has further hammered the jewellery market. It is reported
that sales of watches and jewelry, apparel, accessories and
cosmetics in China has dropped by more than 60% over the
last Lunar New Year period. While there are signs that the
spreading in China has been under control, the outbreak has
developed into a global pandemic. China economy, which
relies on manufacturing and exports, will be further impeded
by wrecked international trade and consumer markets. The
economy may take months to pickup but the Group remains
optimistic of the recovery of domestic jewellery market towards
the second half year.

In respect of market trend, shifting demand from traditional 24K
jewellery towards fashionable products with less gold content
but higher margins to retailers continues to drive the structural
change in the jewellery market. It concurs with the group’s
business strategies over the last couple of years.

For the IT Products and Services segment, the Group remains
interested in other business opportunities including IT and on-
line businesses. The Group will aggressively look for business
opportunities which have synergies with its core business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERBME

(1)

(2)

12

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Company and for safeguarding the shareholders’
interests and the Company's assets.

The Company’'s code of corporate governance practices
was adopted with reference to the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules to
ensure that the Group's business activities and decision-
making processes are regulated in a proper and prudent
manner. The Company has compiled with the Corporate
Governance Code set out in the Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019
except where otherwise stated.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the strategic
directions, management, business and financial
performance of the Group.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day operational
responsibilities of the Group’s business to the executive
management team under the leadership of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and various Board committees.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors:
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Ms. LI Xia

Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia

Ms. NA Xin
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERBME

(2)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting

The Board meets at least four times a year to review
financial and operating performance and discuss the
Group's direction and strategy. Details of the attendance
of the Board of Directors are as follows:

(2)

EE2 45
E=ees

EXe8FRLRTOREHE - Was it
BRhEBERR VARSI AEEZTRR
REE - EFGHFEGRZAFBOT

29 Mar 2019 12 Apr 2019 7 May 2019 15 May 2019 14 Aug 2019 14 Nov 2019

—E-hE ZE-NFE ZEBE-hE ZE-hE ZE-hE  ZE-hE

=A-+hA MWA+=H AA+tH EHA+EH NBtWB +-A+@EHE

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping HEFLE v v v v v V.
Ms. LI Xia B L v/ v XTRJE v v /
Mr. CHEN Yin BRELE XATE v v v v /
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MRELE v v v v v v
Ms. NA Xin Elfi e v v XERE v X v
Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia NEETt v XERFE P33 v v v

Directors are given notice of regular Board meetings of
at least 14 days in advance. The Directors will receive
details of agenda with comprehensive reports on the
management’s strategic plans, updates by business unit
heads on their lines of business, financial objectives,
plans and actions at least 3 days before a Board meeting.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The executive Directors meet every two weeks to review
company business pipeline, receivables, and business
unit performance. Senior management of the Company
(the “Senior Management”) meets with Business Unit
Management every week to review project status, and
business unit issues.

The Company has undertaken several meetings, first
with Senior Management, second with the audit
committee, and subsequently with the Board, to discuss
and review the Group's practice on corporate governance
and make specific checks on the Group’s compliance
via a compliance matrix in accordance to the criteria set
forth by the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary has assisted the chairman of the
Board in preparing the agenda for each meeting and the
minutes of such meetings are kept by the Company’s
company secretary or other duly authorised person. All
minutes are open for inspection by any Director on reasonable
notice. Draft(s) and final version of the minutes are sent to
Directors for comment and records, respectively.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations
of independence were received from each of the
Company's independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive directors are considered to
be independent.

The function of the independent non-executive directors
includes but not limited to participating in Board meetings
and meetings of committees to bring an independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct. The written terms of reference
for their functions in the respective committees; namely
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee are available on the Websites of Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Directors’ Training

Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Every newly appointed Director
should receive induction and subsequent briefing and
professional development.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the Code Provisions (which is
effective from 1 April 2012), Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the period, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

Mr. Lam Tin Faat, as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee also attended a number of seminars/courses
in relation to continuous professional developments
organized by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants during the year in 2019.
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(2)

(3)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Liability Insurance

Appropriate liability insurance, the coverage of which
is reviewed annually, has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the Code Provisions, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual, so that there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Company's
business to ensure a balance of power and authority.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
was in compliance with the aforesaid Code Provisions.

(2)

(3)
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The Audit Committee was established on 11 August
2000. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Audit Committee's principal duties are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group.

The revised terms of reference of Audit Committee in
accordance with Rules 5.05 (2) and 5.28 to 5.29 and
Code C3 of the Code Provisions of the GEM Listing
Rules was adopted.

The members of Audit Committee is currently comprised
Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Na Xin and Ms. Zhao Xiaxia, all
of whom are independent Non-executive Directors. Mr.
Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process, internal control
procedures and risk management system of the Group.

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results
and audited annual results during the year ended 31
December 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, who is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

The summary of work of the audit committee during the
period is as follows:—

- met with the external auditor, reviewed and made
recommendations for the Board's approval on
the annual, interim and quarterly reports of the
Company;

- reviewed and approved audit fee;

- recommended the re-appointment of Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor, subject to
the Shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems; and

- reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.
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TEERRE
(4) AUDIT COMMITTEE (cContinued) (4) EiEESH)
Details of the attendance of members at Audit Committee EHEZEeKERFEEZ BN -
meeting are as follows:
29 Mar 2019 15 May 2019 14 Aug 2019 14 Nov 2019
—E-NF —E-NF —E-NF —B-hF
=A=t+AH EA+EA NA+TW™A +—HA+MA
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MREEE 7 v v v
Ms. NA Xin e &+ XERE v XERTE v
Ms. Zhao Xiaxia WEELT v/ v/ v/ v/
73 ~ = é
(5) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (5) HM=E=

The Remuneration Committee was established on
10 May 2005. The written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee is to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all directors and
senior management’s remuneration.

The revised terms of reference of remuneration committee
in accordance with Code B.1.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Remuneration Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Remuneration Committee, Mr. Lam
Tin Faat, and Ms. Li Xia attended the Remuneration
Committee Meeting on 14 August 2019.

The summary of work of the remuneration committee
during the period is as follows:—

- reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; and

- reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
Directors’ fees of independent non-executive
Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March
2012. The written terms of reference of the nomination
committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee is
to assist the Board to deal with matters in relation to
appointment of members of the Board.

The written terms of reference of nomination committee
in accordance with Code A.5.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Nomination Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Nomination Committee, Mr. Lam Tin
Faat, and Ms. Li Xia attended the Nomination Committee
Meeting on 14 August 2019.

The summary of work of the nomination committee
during the period is as follows:—

- reviewed the existing Board’s structure, size and
composition; and

- reviewed and assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board regularly to ensure
that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Where vacancies on the
Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.
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(7)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company and also to
enhance the quality of performance of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives as stated in the above. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
six directors. Three of the directors are independent
non-executive directors and independent of management,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
professional background, gender and skills.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. Our Company Secretary is currently
Mr. Chan Hoi Keung Terence who were appointed on 12
November 2018. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the process of implementing the Board's
decision, as well as communications between the
members of the Board and the management team of the
Company, and advising the Board and its committees on all
governance matters.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirms that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
twelve months ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 which reflect true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is responsible
for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other
inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Group appointed Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
as the Group's external auditor. The statement by Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited regarding their reporting
responsibilities to the shareholders on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 49 to 54 of this
annual report.
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(11) RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control system of the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Such risk management and internal control systems are
designed for managing risk rather than eliminating the
risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Management team of the Company has established
the Group’s Internal Control Policies and Guidance for
monitoring the internal control system.

The Board has delegated to the management team of
the Company the implementation of such internal control
systems as well as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. Qualified personnels and individual business unit
heads of the Group maintain and monitor the compliance
of these internal control systems and procedures on an
ongoing basis and report variances to senior management.

(11)

(10) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION (10) = EET BN &
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration HE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HLFE
for the provision of audit and non-audit services by the T2 EUAD () AN £ Bl A H R IR BUR B B9
auditors to the Group is as follows: BT -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T T
Fees breakdown by accounting firms B RRE:HETEID
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited BE (BB 2 EBE
BRATA
Annual audit services FEZERS 720 790
Non-audit services rendered in MAKE P HAREIRME
relation to the Group's interim report Z I B AR S - 80
720 870
Other professional CPA firms HEhFEHRESEANTT
Annual audit services FEZERB 115 2417
Total BET 835 1,087
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(12) INTERNAL CONTROL

Based on the assessment and review made by the Board
and senior management on the effectiveness of the internal
control system, the Audit Committee is satisfied that:

o the internal control and accounting systems of the
Group are designed to provide reasonable assurance
as to material assets of the Group are protected,
business risks attributable to the Group are identified
and monitored, material transactions are executed
in accordance with management’s authorisation and
the accounts are reliable for publication; and

° there is an ongoing process in place for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced
by the Group.

(13) COMMUNICATION WITH

22

SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going
dialogue with the shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings or other general meetings to
communicate with the shareholders and encourage their
participation. The Company will ensure that there are
separate resolutions for separate issues proposed at the
general meetings.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update
investors on relevant information on the Group’s business
in a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory
requirements.

A) General Meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a
good opportunity for communication between the
shareholders of the Company and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be
held in each year and at such time and place to be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting.
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(13) COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT (continued)

(13) ERRANEBEBRREER &)

A)  General Meetings (Continued) A) REXE#E)

The 2020 AGM is scheduled on 24 June 2020. A
circular containing, among other matters, further
information relating to the 2020 AGM will be
despatched to the shareholders of the Company
together with this report in accordance with the Bye-
Laws, the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations.

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 58 of the Bye-Laws, any one or
more shareholders of the Company holding as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the company secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74 (3) of the Bye-Laws.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders of the Company have the right to put
enquiries to the Board. All such enquiries shall be
in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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(14) ATTENDANCE OF GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
Chairman should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company and he should invite the chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG
Code, independent non-executive Director and other non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings of
the Company.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and the Shareholders, and investors. These include
answering guestions through the general meetings, the publication
of annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices, announcements
and circulars on the Company’s website at http://www.hkjewelry.
net/ and meetings with investors and the Shareholders. News
update of the Group's business development and operation are
also available on the website.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has formulated and implemented its
guidelines, with an aim to ensure that the insiders abide by the
confidentially requirement and fulfil the disclosure obligation. The
guidelines includes, but not limited to, the procedures as follows:

° The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information;

° The Group has stipulated policy on handling of rumours,
unintentional selective disclosure and waiver to the
disclosure of inside information, external communication
guidelines and compliance and reporting procedures;

o The Group authorised only the executive Directors and
company secretary for responding to external enquiries
about Group's affairs; and

° Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the website of GEM and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HEREREE

The Group complies with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG Reporting Guide")
published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX")
as Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules. The main purpose of
the report is to disclose the Group's approach in the social and
environmental responsibility as well as its vision for sustainable
development strategies.

Subsequent to the consultations and reviews of the ESG
Reporting Guide and related listing rules, HKEX will implement
the consultation proposals, with modifications, reflecting the
comments received that the changes will be effective for
financial years commencing on or after 1 July 2020. New
requirements include:—

1. A Board statement will be required to set out the Board's
consideration of ESG matters, application of Reporting
Principles “materiality”, “quantitative” and “consistency”;
and explanation of reporting boundaries of ESG reports;

2. Disclosure of significant climate-related issues which
have impacted and may impact the Group;

8. Amending the “Environmental” key performance
indicators (KPIs) to require disclosure of relevant targets;
and

4. Upgrading the disclosure obligation of all “Social” KPls

to “comply or explain”

These new requirements will be reflected in the future reports
of the Group. While the approach and subject areas of this
report are consistent with last year, a new subject area of
Public Health is reported to discuss the impacts of coronavirus
epidemic and responses of the Group.
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RE - HEREREE

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group is principally engaged in development, sales and
implementation of enterprise software products, systems
integration services and design and sales of gold and jewellery
products and investment holding. Determined to establish a
sustainable business model, the Group aims to create positive
impacts for key stakeholder groups including shareholders,
employees, suppliers, customers and the community, etc., and
strike a balance between profit, planet and people.

The major environmental and social aspects of concern in
respect of the Group’s business include packaging materials
consumption, customer service and talent management, etc.
Spearheaded by the CEO, these environmental and social
aspects are measured and managed by various departments
including but not limited to finance, administration and the
operation departments.

While we are committed to bearing our share of social
responsibility as a responsible corporate citizen, we are devoted
to protecting employees’ rights, providing them training for
continuous development and creating a safe and healthy
workplace.

We believe ensuring stringent product quality control is the
foundation for success. In addition to complying with applicable
rules and regulations, the Group also maintains effective
supplier management by assessing suppliers’ environmental
and social performance. While our operations do not have any
significant impact on the environment and the society, we
strive to minimize any potential negative impacts.

26 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019

ESGERE I

AEBTENERE  HEREROERMGE
m o RHEEBEKRY - AR MHEFRSMIK
BEMR  ARREEZER REIAKEERNE
RN - AKEBORER - BE - HER F
FhiRFXZMNEHNENELATZE Ak
EEAN - WHRRERABZHBEFE -

AEBEBRRENLENENEIHEEER
MEDERE - BEPIRF - AT ERESE - ELRIRM
HEHTERERITHRAHEEYASFMERR
B - BRETRRMBEE  ITHREMELR

ER—REBEENRA  RFBHAELER

£ B ZPBORERENERN - AEER
HRHEEI - BELERENTERE -

BAREERRBENERESEEFERINE
B o fRETEANRRRBIES - NEEEE
FHAEHERNRBNLERE - UERSRAH
FERER - BABRMWEXBTISHREME A

REAZE  BEASHRITAEENRER
2 o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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MATERIALITY ANALYSES

Subject Area
TREHE

BREEEMDN
Most material aspects in the subject area
EPEARENRE

Employment and Labour practices

BEESLTER

Protect employees’ rights and welfares

Ensure employees’ occupation health and safety
Provide training and development

RIS (B B 2 Ba4E A

ERESNBERERELS

IR AR

Operating practices

BEER

Ensure product and service quality

Maintain high Ethical Standard and observing local laws and
legislations

RERKMRBES

B EERETETEERER

Environmental protection

Minimize Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Observe environmental laws
Minimize packaging material consumption

RFRE RERDBREREBENR

BEIREROED

e 2E L
Social Community Contribution to Community Development
Fan Bl %R

Public Health (Epidemic)

Protect health of employees
Work with the Government to fight against epidemic
Keep employment

NHEEORE) RIZ(E B 2FE
HEERFA R
R

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employees’ Rights and Welfares

Our policies on recruitment, remuneration, welfare, assessment
and promotion are established on the basis of relevant laws
and regulations. Employee welfares including sick leave, annual
leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave and parental leave
are provided according to legal requirements and related
guidelines. Computation of remuneration and compensation
are clearly communicated to employees during their induction
training. The Group has complied with all laws and regulations
related to employment including the Employment Ordinance in
Hong Kong; the Labour Law of the People’'s Republic of China
and the Labour Contract Law of the People’'s Republic of China.
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During the year, the Group observed no incidents of
violations of any relevant labour laws and regulations related
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfares.

As on 31 December 2019, most of the employees are located
in Mainland China. Workforce distributions are as follows:

Age Profile
FiRA

2019
—T-NEF

30-50
30-505%

M Below 30
NRA30RR,

[ 50 Above
50554 £

We place high importance on employees’ workplace and
motivation as they are pivotal to the Group’s long-term growth.
We provide equal opportunity for all employees and ensure
that they are not discriminated on gender, age, race, religion
and marital status etc. Procedures are established for annual
evaluation of employees’ performances based on merit and
experience, which becomes a reference for remuneration
review and promotion. Year-end bonus and appropriate
promotion opportunities are offered to employees with
outstanding performance. Responsible managers are required to
conduct assessment in a fair manner. Employees may express
their opinions or grievances regarding the assessment, position
transfer and promotion directly to the management or the
administrative department.

In addition, the Group encourages active communication among
employees for building a positive corporate culture. We organize
annual dinner and various festive activities which build stronger
employee relationships and enhance team cohesion within the
Group.
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RE - HEREREE

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group’s operations do not involve significant safety
risk. Nevertheless, we do not overlook the responsibility
to safeguard employees’ health and safety. In accordance
with the Labor Law of the People's Republic of China, the
Production Safety Law of the People’'s Republic of China and
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, we have established various
management requirements relevant to occupational health and
safety. Appropriate liability insurance has been maintained for
all directors and employees to provide coverage to them for
risks associated with business operations of the Company. The
insurance coverage is reviewed annually to match job content
of employees. During the year, the Group did not record any
cases of work-related fatalities or injuries, and was not aware
of any non-compliance with laws and regulations having a
significant impact relating to occupational health and safety.

For the business of jewellery products, we emphasize fire
prevention and anti-theft measures in offices and retail shops.
We highly value safety training of employees. We have a 'Safety
System for Sales Assistants’ that guides them how to better
the implementation of safety protection work. Meanwhile, the
Group organizes regular fire drills for all employees annually
to ensure they are familiar with appropriate ways of handling
fire accidents, protecting personal safety of customers and
employees themselves under emergency situations.

Training and Development

Talents are the key to corporate sustainable development
and the Group spares no effort in training its employees. We
arrange appropriate training for employees of all categories in
order to improve their knowledge and skills corresponding to
their respective duties, thereby improving the Group’s service
quality.
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All new employees are required to receive induction training
upon joining the Group, which helps them fully understand
the Group’s corporate culture and management standards and
their job duties. Senior employees are required to provide on-
the-spot instructions with reasonable arrangements to allow
mutual matching between new and senior employees, enabling
better adaptation of new employees to job requirements and
duties. In addition, department heads such as shop managers
coordinate with the human resources department to formulate
suitable training programs as required, based on employees’
development needs.

For training of the seniors, the Group strictly abides by the
Corporate Governance Code to provide orientation training to
any newly appointed directors. Training programs in relation to
continuous professional development are arranged to ensure
they are aware of their overall responsibilities, thereby leading
the Company on the path to development. During the year, the
Group provided trainings to all employees in the business of
jewellery products record.

The Group is committed to providing employees with a practical
development platform. Based on employees’ work performance,
promotion assessment is conducted by their supervisors
annually, after employees have worked for a full year. Then it is
reviewed by the administrative department and finally decided
by the Chairman of the Board. Employees promoted have to be
on probation until formally promoted after approval. For talented
employees with outstanding work performance, supervisors
can apply provisional assessment and recommend frog-leaping
promotion.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Product and Service Quality

Products of the Group include jewellery as well as software
products and services for corporates. Health and safety
risks involved in these products and services are relatively
insignificant. We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
related to product quality, advertising, product labelling and
customer privacy, including the Product Quality Law of the
People’'s Republic of China, the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests. During
the year, there was no occurrence of any monetary or non-
monetary sanctions due to non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations.

Regarding the business of jewellery products, the Group has
set up 'Regulation on Goods Management’ for strict control
of quality and quantity of products available for sale. Every
product is checked and accepted by shop managers after
checking quality and quantity of products, appropriate matching
of product labels and the relevant certificates. Meanwhile, as a
responsible business operator, we provide a series of after-sale
services including product repairing. Follow-up work is well-
managed when repairing of products is under processing to
ensure repair is completed in-time and the damage or defect is
addressed satisfactorily.

We highly value quality of customer services to satisfy
customers’ needs to the best of our ability. Upon receipt of any
complaint, we conduct inspection on problems offer remedies
as required in accordance with relevant regulations of the
Company. If customers show dissatisfaction towards results
of the investigation and our remedies, responsible staff are
required to report the incident to their supervisors for further
measures in order to satisfy customers.
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Ethics, local laws and regulations

The Group upholds the highest standards of integrity in its
operations. Adhering to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in
Hong Kong and the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China, any corruption behavior is prohibited. Whistleblowing
mechanisms are established to encourage employees to
report any suspected case of bribery or illegal behavior to the
management. Follow-up investigations are promptly conducted.
Cases of corruption, if any, are immediately handed over to the
authorities. Personnel involved may face disciplinary actions,
including dismissal. Requirements on employees’ conduct have
been articulated through the employee handbook.

During the year, there were no reported cases of violation of
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group's operations do not involve production activities that
have significant impacts on the environment. Nevertheless, we
aware of the environmental impacts it may generate when we
conduct business.
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Our major part of air emissions is generated from the vehicles
owned and operated by the Group. Fuel consumption of our
vehicles contributed to direct greenhouse gas emissions of 9.30
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e).

BEREBIHR
BPMEIEERENBASERGLERNES
BWEL - BIEEMAMEDEREL. 30 — At
MEENEEREREBIN

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Unit 2019 2018
BERBEHEK B —ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Direct Emission (Scope 1) EEHER(EE) tCO,e M_AtiEE 9.30 4.20

Environmental Laws

The Group strictly complies with relevant environmental laws
and regulations in China such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People's Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Air Pollution and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution of Solid
Waste.
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Packaging Material Consumption

The Group is conscious of the impacts of packaging materials
to the environment. Consumption of packaging materials
are closely monitored. Regular review of product packaging
material and designs are performed to minimize impacts to
the environment due to overpackaging and non-biodegradable
materials.

BEMEIHRE
AEERIBRMHERENTE  TUEZEE
EMEDER  UERRBERBEM B RRS
AEER/NRIBE BEIE R AR
MEKEIRELE

Unit 2019 2018
B —2-h%E —TN\F
Packaging material B R
- Gift boxes —B2 Pcsfd 5,440 40,629
- Shopping bags —BYR Pcsfd 6,340 42,900
SOCIAL COMMUNITY H+E
Contribution to the Community O fEx e

The Group contribute to the communities where its businesses
are located by offering job opportunities to local residents.
Employees are encouraged to get involved in community and
charity activities, spreading compassion within the Group and
in the community as well as supporting the society’s well-being
and development.
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PUBLIC HEALTH (EPIDEMIC)

Health of Employees

The Group's investments in Human Capital expose to impacts
of epidemic and its risks to health of the employees and their
families. Employees are considered as valuable assets to the
Group. The Group determines to provide hygienic working
environment and take the best measures to protect the
employees from health issues brought by epidemic. For the
current coronavirus epidemic, workspaces in Hong Kong and
China are regularly disinfected and staff are allowed flexibility
to work at home in order to minimize the threats to employee’s
health at and on their way to their workspace. The management
has also provided adequate face masks and hand sanitiser for
the employees.

Fight against epidemic

As a stakeholder of the society, the Group will follow the
government measures, both mandatory and voluntary, for
fighting against epidemic. The Group understands that
government regulations are applying to public or an specific
industry at large and therefore, these regulations are usually
less effective and responsive to the latest development of the
epidemic. The Group will act against the epidemic proactively
according to its own conditions and resources available.

Employment

The disruptions of epidemic to businesses can be extensive but
the Group believes that maintaining jobs are crucial to recovery
of an economy. While profitability is the prime objective, the
Group recognizes its social responsibilities under epidemic and
will keep employment as long as resources of the Group allow.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and financial position of the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 176.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the “Financial Summary”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 5, pages 6 to 7 and pages 8 to 11
respectively of this Annual Report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill social
responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of
the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 59 to 60 and note 32
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHRE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had no
distributable reserve.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping (Chairman)
Ms. LI Xia

Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. NA Xin

Ms. ZHAO XiaXia

Pursuant Article 83(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. Pursuant to Article 84(2), any Director
appointed pursuant to Article 83(2) shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything herein,
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years. Mr. Chong Yu Ping, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Zhao Xia
Xia will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 46 to 48.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Group’'s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the Group, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market practices.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Details of the connected and related party transactions are set
out in the Directors’ Report and note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Notwithstanding the above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or the Director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “"SFO"), or as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”),
were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company

EERFETHRAERKRG - HER
DRESFTRFEEZEERKXE

R=ZFE—hF+_A=+—H8 BREAQRER
BHREEGRO(ES REBEEG ) FE 362164
EGFEZELME  BBEEEHERIFE
BRI ([BERET]) GEMES LR AI(TGEM
RADFEL46IEBE TARR KB RAI2BA - &
RAEERFETBRABNARR KERAEEE
D - BEARDSESPRBECERRAR D
T

REATSREEI10BLEBERZITFE

Number of ordinary shares held

FEEBEREA
Percentage of
the issued
Held by share capital
Beneficial Held controlled of the
Owner by family corporation Total Company
ERARERIT
Name of Director EEfS EREAA HREEE HEEAFARE ok RAB DL
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping HEFEE 35,481,000 - 804,157,697 839,639,697 43.11%
(Note 1)
(Hit1)
Ms. LI Xia FELT - - 804,157,697 804,157,697 41.29%
(Note 1)
(Hit1)
Mr. CHEN Yin REL4E - - 149,455,740 149,455,740 7.67%
(Note 2)
(Hs22)
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Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

2)

These shares were held by Sino Eminent Limited. Sino Eminent
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
is owned as to 25% by Ocean Expert Investments Limited and
75% by Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Yihua”),
a company incorporated in the PRC which is held as to 80% by
Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Accordingly, Mr. Chong Yu Ping is deemed
to be interested in 804,157,697 shares held by Sino Eminent
Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent Limited being controlled
by Mr. Chong Yu Ping through his shareholding in Shenzhen
Yihua. Ocean Expert Investments Limited is a limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly
owned by Ms. Li Xia. Ms. Li Xia is deemed to be interested in
804,157,697 shares held by Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of
Sino Eminent Limited being controlled by Ms. Li Xia through her
shareholding in Ocean Expert Investments Limited and through
her acting as the sole director of Sino Eminent Limited.

These shares were held by Flourish Zone Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Chen Yin.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

At 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders WZZ—hF+_A=+—H » EXQFER
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the FEAKHEEEIIEICKEFEZFEREZMAT
SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the & @ TZ|RE D HERQ T RERQT D EITRAKA
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued A HABEZR AR °

share capital of the Company.

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued share capital
Capacity in which interests are ordinary of the
Name of party Notes held shares held Company
. FIBERT  (BADRERT
HEENEEB izt BEERNSH EEREE RABE DL
Sino Eminent Limited Note 1 Beneficial owner 804,157,697 41.29%
ZERAR AT M1 BmBEAA
Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd Note 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 804,157,697 41.29%
A TEEIRE B RN AR LA Mat1  RREHAR L #Ea
Ocean Expert Investments Limited Note 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 804,157,697 41.29%
BRREARLA Mizt1  RREHIAR L #a
Ms. LI Xia Note 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 804,157,697 41.29%
Eut fizt1  RREHIAR L #Ew
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping Note 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 839,639,697 43.11%
and Beneficial owner
HETEE ffiz1 REZFHLRCEEREREEA
Flourish Zone Limited Note 2 Beneficial owner 149,455,740 7.67%
BEEERAR M2  EmBEBA
Mr. CHEN Yin Note 2 Interest in a controlled corporation 149,455,740 7.67%
BRELE Mzt2  RREHIAR L #a
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited Note 3 Interest in controlled corporations 143,233,151 7.35%
RINZEZARAA Mizt3  RREHIAR L #Ew

—E-NEER

HEERZERARLDE 41



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

Notes:

(1) Sino Eminent Limited is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, is owned as to 26% by Ocean Expert
Investments Limited and 75% by Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co.,
Ltd (“Shenzhen Yihua”), a company incorporated in the PRC
which is held as to approximately 80% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping.
Accordingly, Mr. Chong Yu Ping is deemed to be interested in
804,157,697 shares held by Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of
Sino Eminent Limited being controlled by Mr. Chong Yu Ping
through his shareholding in Shenzhen Yihua. Ocean Expert
Investments Limited is a limited company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands which is wholly owned by Ms. Li Xia. Ms.
Li Xia is deemed to be interested in 804,157,697 shares held by
Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent Limited being
controlled by Ms. Li Xia through her shareholding in Ocean
Expert Investments Limited and through her acting as the sole
director of Sino Eminent Limited.

(2) Flourish Zone Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Yin. Accordingly,
Mr. Chen Yin is deemed to be interested in the 165,455,740
shares interested by Flourish Zone Limited.

3) CK Hutchison is deemed to be interested in a total of 143,233,151
shares of the Company through its controlled companies.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest customers was approximately 64% of
the Group's total turnover and the Group's largest customer
accounted for approximately 21% of the Group's turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 100% of
the Group's total purchases and the Group’'s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 46% of the Group's total
purchases.

At no time during the year, the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major suppliers or customers.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its associated corporations a party to
any arrangement that enables the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or its associated corporation.

BEROIEZ 22 H

BRER EXHEN - FARQE - HHBRFHK
HARR 2B B L EM L REES T EER
BEARRBSEARE AR 2 R HEHFMESHE

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY BEFRBEEIRS
TRANSACTIONS
2019 2018
Name of counterparty Nature of transactions “E-hE —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
5T ER XHMHE TR THET
- Excel Technology International Professional fee received N/A 9,238
{Hong Kong) Limited EHEXER TER
(“Excel HK") (Note 1) Professional fee paid N/A 1,496
— SRR ER (FE)BRAR ENEXER TER
([FBEE]) (M) Purchase of complementary N/A L
hardware and software
BERERMAREM ~EA
Administration expenses N/A 360
reimbursements (Net paid)
THRAXME (2 HFR) ~EA
Staff cost reimbursements N/A 147
BIRAHE ~EA
- Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Sales of gold and jewellery 53 203
Company Limited products
("Shenzhen Yihua") (Note 2) HEESRUBER
- R HEERBERHRHBRAF]
(TR ) (Hi22)
Materials processing charges 409 S
HHEEET
Operating lease charge on = 2,493
land and building
THREFREHEER
Note: Bet -

(1) Percentage of interest in Excel HK held by the Company
indirectly decrease from 50% to 5% on 29 March 2018 and
decreased from 5% to nil on 31 August 2018.

(2) Shenzhen Yihua is a substantial shareholder of the Company
having interest of approximately 41.29% (2018: 45.11%) of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2019
and is owned as to approximately 80% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping.

(1) FAGAREEEBEEHBNESH IR T
—NE=F=+hEHE0%BEEE% + HR=
T N\ENF=+—AHE%EET -

2) FNEZEBA RG] ZEERE  RARGRZ
FE—NFF+-A=+—H441.29% (ZF—)N
F A5 11 %)EFITRAPHE B - WHIH
1% FIEFFFRIS0% RHE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors, the management
shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes
or may cause significant competition with the business of the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is any permitted indemnity provision being in force
for the benefit of any directors of the Company (whether made
by the Company or otherwise) or of its associated company (made
by the Company).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship with each other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of
independence were received from each of the Company's
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and all independent non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11 August
2000 with written terms of reference in accordance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
currently comprise three members — Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms.
Zhao Xiaxia and Ms. Na Xin, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee
met on a quarterly basis during the year ended 31 December
2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 12 to 24.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event occurring after the reporting
period are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
12 May 2020
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEABER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping, also known as Mr. Zhuang
Ruping (Age 53)

Chairman

Mr. Chong is the Chairman of the Company, who is responsible
for leading the work of the Board and setting operation direction
and investment strategies for the Company. Mr. Chong has
over 20 years of relevant experience in the jewellery and
investment industry. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chong
has been appointed as the general manager and executive
Director of a private company, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery
Limited* and from 2011 to present, he is the director and legal
representative of Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Limited, a company
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed
under the section headed “Substantial Shareholders” in the
Directors’ Report included herein. Mr. Chong was appointed as
an executive Director and as the Chairman of the Company on
17 February 2016.

Ms. LI Xia (Age 46)

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Li is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, who
is responsible for the corporate planning and business
development of the Company. Ms. Li served in Shanghai
Shenggiu Investment Development Limited*, and was
appointed as executive vice president with her experience
and strength in jewellery industry. Ms. Li was responsible for
administration and human resource management, marketing
operations and brand promotion. At the same time, Ms. Li also
served as the special-commissioned jewellery operating adviser
for Baidi Jewellery to lead the company to achieve excellent
results, which made her the veteran in the jewellery business.
Ms. Li graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic
of the Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration. Ms. Li has been an Executive Director
of the Group since 3 July 2012.

*  For identification purpose only
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEAEBERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. CHEN Yin (Age 38)

Mr. Chen is an entrepreneur in the Mainland China, who
held senior positions in various private companies principally
engaged in luxury goods trading business. Mr. Chen obtained
the Diploma of Graduate Gemologist, Diploma of Diamonds and
Diploma of Colored Stones from the Gemological Institute of
America (“GIA"). Mr. Chen has been as an Executive Director
of the Group since 3 July 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Tin Faat (Age 44)

Mr. Lam holds a bachelor degree of business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has more
than 10 years of experience in financial audit, accounting and
financial management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lam is also the sole proprietor of TF Lam &
Company, a CPA practice in Hong Kong, and a director of Top
Team Secretary Limited. Mr. Lam has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 3 July 2012.
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EENSREEABER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (cContinued)

Ms. NA Xin (Age 39)

Ms. Na was the chief operating officer of FIITFNEXKREE
#iA PR A (Shenzhen Jiuha Cai Jewellery Co., Ltd), a company
specialized in qualified jewellery trading business from 2008
to 2012. She was an assistant to chief executive officer for
Little Sheep North America (Vancouver) Branch (/NEB3F4b3E
CBE#)DAF]) from 2012 to 2013. Ms. Na completed her
Bachelor's degree in English in the School of Humanities and
Social Science of Beijing Jiaotong University (formerly known
as the Northern Jiaotong University) in 2003. Ms. Na has been
an independent non-executive Director of the Group since
1 December 2014.

Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia (Aged 40)

Ms. Zhao was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 9 July 2018. Ms. Zhao obtained a college diploma
of history education in Qingdao University (5 5AZ) in 2000.
She has been serving as the assistant to the chairman and
deputy general manager of a PRC jewellery company for several
years, principally responsible for executive, management,
and coordination work. Ms. Zhao has ample experience in
marketing, exhibition and operation of jewellery bands.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2R E

Q Grant Thornton
2[5

To the members of Yu Tak International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yu
Tak International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to
176, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZRANHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Existence and valuation of inventories

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 2.10,
critical accounting estimates and judgements in note 4 and note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2019,
the Group had inventories of
HK$55,026,000. Inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

The Group's inventories mainly
comprised gold and jewellery
products which are subject
to risk of changes in market
value. In determining the net
realisable value, estimates and
judgements are applied by the
management in respect of the
economic condition, forecast
market price and marketability
of products.

We considered this as key audit
matter due to the significance
of inventories (representing
39% of total assets) and the
involvement of management
judgement and estimation
on the net realisable value of
inventories.
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How the matter was
addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to the existence
and valuation of inventories included
the following:

attended physical inventory
counts at year end and performed
“two-way"” count on a sample
basis;

inspected the external laboratory
reports on the authenticity of
gold and jewellery products for
the samples selected by us;

obtained an understanding of
management’s process for
identification of slow-moving
inventories and estimation
of net realisable value of
inventories;

reviewed and analysed the
ageing of inventories and
their associated provisions;
and

reviewed and evaluated
the net realisable value of
inventories, with reference to
subsequent sales information
and external market price
data, on a sample basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2R E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the 2019 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZRANHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
38 3 B BT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR REMMRETA RSN RRARENSE
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED &)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, MEZEALZTESEBNEZIED » RIPAEPLSE
we determined those matters that were of most significance in  IEH NG EMBERERAOEA;S TIERAETE -
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current MEKEHREFAAEIE - RIEEEIERTATA
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe FEZBUEFEE - B EENEBRT © HFIR
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation AFBEHZE=BEIAEEENTRZREBHEA
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in RHABESEEEAOFNZMAERREREE - &
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter BRI ZEEIREP ML EEE o

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communications.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited BE(EB)ETHEEMERAT
Certified Public Accountants HESETRD

Level 12 8

28 Hennessy Road BT

Wanchai B FFE285%

Hong Kong 1218

12 May 2020 —E-ZTFRA+=H

Kwok Siu Kwan, Sylvia
Practising Certificate No.: P06616
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEeEsREMEZERER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FET FETT
Revenue WA B 98,492 97,225
Other income H Uz 7 699 455
Change in inventories FEEH (9,897) 28,859
Purchase of goods EEEM (20,574) (45,443)
Professional fees BXEHR (18,075) (5,733)
Employee benefits expense EERAMZ 12 (42,735) (69,614)
Depreciation e (2,045) (852)
Other expenses Hibpx (18,098) (21,415)
Finance costs Bi5E A 8 (53) -
Loss on disposal of financial HERARBEFAEME
asset at fair value through other  EES([HE AR EBEETA
comprehensive income ("FVOCI”) EM2EW NS RE
EZEE = (117)
Share of results of an associate FE(E—fEEE N R 2 EE 17 = 175
Share of results of a joint venture JE{H—EA L ME 7 ¥4 18 (2,510) =
Loss on deemed disposal of an BRIEHE—HBER T 2B
associate B 17 = (6,837)
Loss on remeasurement of ENFIELABENEE DR
previously held equity interest ¥R ZERE
in a joint venture 37 (147) T
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries H & W@ QA E) 7 W5 %58 38 308 87
Loss before income tax NRFIEHAIEER 9 (14,635) (23,210)
Income tax expense FriS Rt 10 (79) (41)
Loss for the year FREE (14,714) (23,251)
Other comprehensive income/ FREHMEEKZE (BIX)
(expense) for the year
Items that will not be reclassified HEETNSEH S IEEIE72
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Financial assets at FVOCI — net BARBETAEMEER
movement in fair value reserve ENEREE-AAEE
(non-recycling) FEEEEERE (T 28) 6,667 (439)
tems that will be reclassified REBSEN P EE B
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange loss on translation of MG INETS B TS R A BB
financial statements of foreign HIBE
operations (765) (3,771)
Release of exchange reserve upon A& —RHE D FIEARR
disposal of a subsidiary HINGE (8 4 72 2
5,974 (4,208)
Total comprehensive expense for FR2EB &%
the year (8,740) (27,459)

T-NEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REeBEakEtEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-)N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P& T T
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{SFREE :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZZ =N (14,680) (23,668)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R 2 (34) 417
(14,714) (23,251)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FEE2E(BX)
income attributable to: #zE
Owners of the Company PAN/NSIEZS N (8,706) (27,876)
Non-controlling interests eI R (34) 417
(8,740) (27,459)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted ARG EE 11 (HK0.78 centsi&{l)) (HK1.44 cents/&1ll)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, Mz : ALER T —NLF—A—HEXEREEH

using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, BWmEERE 165  HALEITEBWE - BRIE
comparative information is not restated. See note 3. B77E - EEERARTEY o FLHMES -

The notes on pages 63 to 176 are an integral part of these consolidated FE63B EF 176 B WM TR It 454 BB E
financial statements. H)—2B1pn o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R 3R

as at 31 December 2019 R} —F— A F+—-H=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B TET F&T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 14 3,313 4,218
Right-of-use assets FEHEEE 15 644 -
Interest in a joint venture R—HEEELH¥E 2 ER 18 = =
Other financial assets Hibe & E 19 18,593 11,926
Development costs RN 20 - £
22,550 16,144
Current assets REBEE
Inventories VEN{ 21 55,026 64,923
Contract assets AEHEE 22 6,141 9,456
Trade receivables FEE 5 BRF 23 5,323 6,524
Other receivables, deposits and Han e EoE - e RFER
prepayments RIE 24 26,170 26,655
Cash and bank balances Ne RBITER 25 25,994 27181
118,654 134,689
Current liabilities REBE
Trade payables ERE SRR 26 1,076 572
Other payables and accrued charges H e 3%18 R TEIZE FH 27 6,051 11,566
Contract liabilities BHAEE 22 6,763 9,285
Amounts due to directors ENEERIE 28 9,682 20,785
Lease liabilities HEAaE 29 461 =
Tax payable FERTFRIR 58 47
24,091 42,255
Net current assets REBEEFE 94,563 92,434
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAFERAITEE 117,113 108,578
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 197 =
Net assets EEFHE 116,916 108,578
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R 3R

as at 31 December 2019 R} —F—F+-H=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff5E T#E T FATT
EQUITY ;]
Share capital f& 7 30 194,769 178,269
Reserves B (76,497) (68,369)
Equity attributable to owners of 72 F#EH A FE(LIREE
the Company 118,272 109,900
Non-controlling interests FEIERAERS (1,356) (1,322)
Total equity R4 R 116,916 108,578
Li Xia =8 Chong Yu Ping HET
Director E Director EEa

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019,
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 63 to 176 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2019 2 —ZFE—NF+_-HA=1+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTERARLE
Falr valug Non-
Share Share Exchange Capital reserve - non- Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve* recycling® losses* Total nterests equity
Yy
Br o RiREr  ERET  AAER R-TUEER ZiER g dihEs  RESE
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Titn Thn TiEn T Tin Tt Thn Tin Thn
Balance at 1 January 2018 NE-N\E-R-BHEH 118 846 220438 2,592) (276) 12545 268138) 80,823 (1,739) 79,084
(LossfProfit for the year Fh(E) /& - = = = i (23,668 (23,668) i (23.251)
Other comprehensive levpense)  EHAE(ER)/ Uz
ncome:
- Fxchange loss on translation o~ ~ BB EREBRRHE
financial statements of foreign BEE
operations - - 377 - - - 377 - 377
- Release of exchange reserve -thE-FNELARERE
upon disposal of a subsidiary Bk = = 1 = = - l - 1
- Financial assets at FVOC - net — ~BAAEEFALH2ENR
movernent in far value reserve BlEBEE-LAEH
e = 3 = - (439) = (439) = (439)
- Amount reclassified to -LERM BRI ALE
accumulated losses upon ElEhEREERES
disposal of financial assets at AEEZHEENLE
FVOCI - - - = (180) 180 - - -
Total comprehensive (expensell ~ FR2E(RR)/WE4E
income for the year - = 3,769) S 619) (23,488) (27,876) a7 (27,459)
Issue of ordinary shares on Rights ~ FERERTEBR(HE300)
Issug (note 30 59423 (2470 = = - - h6,953 - 56,953
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZF-NEtZA=1-R
it 178269 217968 16,361) (276) 196 9188 109900 (130 108578
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARERARL
Fair value Non-
Share Share  Exchange Capital reserve - non-  Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium* reserve* reserve*  recycling* losses* Total interests equity
MEER
ke RftRE*  MERE*  EABR &-TREE  EZiER B HEREE  WELE
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T#n T T#n T#7 T#n T#n T Tén T
Balance at 1 January 2019 RE-NE-A-BaEs 178,269 217,968 (6,361) (276) 11,926 (291,626) 109,900 (1322) 108,578
Loss for the year EmEe = = o = = (14,680) (14,680) (34) (14714)
Other comprehensive (expensell ~ E42E(FR)/E
income:
Exchange loss on translation -BERNERE R
of financial statements of EiEE
foreign operations - - (765) - - - (765) - (765)
Release of exchange reserve -HENBARBERES
upon disposal of subsidaries fi - - n - - - n - n
Financial assets at FVOC) - ~RAREEFARMZE
net movement i fai value WEMEEAE - 17
fesene BEGEREE - - - - 6,667 - 6,667 - 6,667
Totel comprehensive (expense)l ~ £AZE(RY)hikeE
income for the year - - (693) - 6,667 (14,680) (8,706) (34) (8,740)
Issue of ordinary shares by Placing ~ BAF S LR (HFEE3001)
(note 30(i) 16,500 825 - - - - 1732 - 17325
Transaction costs atrbutable to issue  EEXTERRERNRHER
of ordinary shares by Placing fnote (M3
30 = (261) - - - - (261) - (261)
Acquisiion of additional interests of & WE—-FHBAR BMER
subsidiary (note 37) (Bista7) - - - 1 - - 14 - 1
Balance at 31 December 2019 RoE-METZA=1-H
it 194,769 218532 (7,054) (262) 18593 (306,306) 118212 (1,356) 116,916

consolidated statement of financial position.

Note:

These reserves accounts comprise the Group's deficit of *
reserves of HK$76,497,000 (2018: HK$68,369,000) in the

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019,
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,

comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 63 to 176 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FE T
Cash flows from operating REKETH2HESRE
activities
Loss before income tax MBR TSR AT E 18 (14,635) (23,210)
Adjustments for: FEE
Depreciation e 2,045 852
Net loss on written off/disposal of  #fits " HEWE  HEKL
property, plant and equipment R 2 FEE 596 10
Interest income F B U 2 (51) (33)
Expected credit losses (“ECL") HtEWRIBE v TBEEE
allowance on other receivables EE([FEREEEE])
B 9 126
Interest expense FERXZ 8 53 =
Written off of contract assets BHEEME 525 -
Loss on remeasurement of EFMFTEANBAENEE
previously held equity interest EERZEE
in a joint venture 37 147 -
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR Z W F58 38 (308) (87)
Loss on disposal of financial asset  HERA R EBET AHM
at FVOCI FHEENEREEL
E1E - 117
Loss on deemed disposal of an BIELE TS NF 2
associate 18 17 = 6,837
Share of results of an associate FE(E—EE AR 2 A 17 - (175)
Share of results of a joint venture  JE{E—I& KM% 24 18 2,510 =
Exchange loss/(gain) bE 5 &1 (Weas) 603 (710)
Operating loss before working BEESEHRIZEEEE
capital changes (8,506) (16,273)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories  1Z&5 4~ (3€40) 9,007 (30,361)
Increase in contract assets ABHEEIL N (3,749) (2,093)
Decrease in trade receivables FEUE 5 AR FOR 995 6,352
Increase in other receivables, Hitnfe kg -« Ze kB
deposits and prepayments R FRIBE N (2,760) (5,096)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade FEfH & SRR, Rl
payables 4) 523 (450)
Decrease in other payables and Hi T FIE MTERRE B
accrued charges Ve (5,753) (9,481)
(Decrease)/Increase in contract AHEaECRD), i
liabilities (1,412) 8,229
Cash used in operations R IREN R IS (11,655) (49,173)
Income tax paid EATETISEL (67) (70)
Net cash used in operating activities #&4 ZE)E)fH o H 5 F58 (11,722) (49,243)

=

—=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBRTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
I FET T
Cash flows from investing RERETH2RERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BENMRE
equipment (206) (3,970)
Proceeds from disposal of HERB AT ZETEHIA
subsidiaries 38(b) 2,480 -
Decrease in other receivables H b e U B s R > 6,652 -
Net cash inflow on deemed RIEWHE B AR
acquisition of a subsidiary ERAFRE 37 120 =
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEMBARMELEZRES
of subsidiaries TR 38 (3,288) (2,836)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERARBEAEME
assets at FVOCI HREHNEREE S
KIB - 923
Interest received B UF & 51 33
Net cash generated from/(used in)  REEZBHTEL(EH)Z
investing activities B FE 5,809 (5,850)
Cash flows from financing REMETH2RERE
activities
Net proceeds from issuance of AR B T TR AR TS X
ordinary shares on Rights Issue TH, %8 30 - 56,953
Net proceeds from issuance of BIBREEITEBRFIER
ordinary shares by Placing %5 30 17,064 -
Payment of lease liabilities YNEEAE 40 (948) -
Advances from directors E=S b = 247
Repayments to directors MEEESERIE (11,103) =
Net cash generated from financing EtE& EEIFEL S H & FEE
activities 5,013 57,200
Net (decrease)/increase in cash REeERBEEEW2ZOR
and cash equivalents D)/ EnERE (900) 2,107
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 R—A—BzRE&RREE
January (Y 27,131 25,675
Effect on foreign exchange rate E R E) v &
changes (237) (651)
Cash and cash equivalents at31 R+Z-A=+—H2zHER
December, represented by cash IREZEY - MBREERIER
and bank balances TER 25,994 27,131
Wi AKER-T—AF—A— B EREDEBH

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019,
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,

comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 63 to 176 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
62
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the development, sale and
implementation of enterprise software, provision of
systems integration and professional services, design
and sales of gold and jewellery products and investment
holding. The Group's operations are based in Hong Kong
and the People's Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 12 May 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs"”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM
Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new and amended HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group's financial statements,
if any, are disclosed in note 3.

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis, except
for financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") which are
stated at fair values. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power over the entity, only substantive rights
relating to the entity (held by the Group and
others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group's
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

for the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

2.

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHBEEME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 22 #HKEZEEE)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to accumulated losses).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. Cost includes directly
attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee's pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company'’s profit or loss.

HARBEREH - B AR ZE
B - AR SR 2B TIA TS
MIRZ ZRETHE : (VFTREREZ
RAEBERMEAREEEZAAEBE
2 RMBARZEE(R
EEE) KA ERMEMIHER R
SEREREE - HHBARZETE
EREMEBIAABEFE - M
AR REXEECREMER
W ERY RS Rat - BIRATR
Hip 2 E NS ER MR Ret 2
CREBEUBNARREERLE
HEEEZ T AARBIEFRDEE
Bl BERERERAER) -

RARBZHBRRAERT - HEA
AR ERER RS - BRIE
ZHBRRAFEFELRRERH
SRR - KABEEREIERIR

MEBABZEERARRREIHRA
Hze W R EREBAR - AR
B (ERANEIRE T WRE RSB
& HYE A P B B E AR A B R

e

NEFH HEABZERERAE 67



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

for the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

2.

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition—
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value on the acquirer’'s
previously held interest in the acquiree, the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as bargain purchase gain.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss
when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RAR M

for the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions relating about
relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

In the consolidated financial statements, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture
is initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the associate or joint venture recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess
of the Group’'s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the determination of the Group’s share
of the associate or joint venture’'s profit or loss in
the period in which the investment acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group's interest in
the associate or joint venture is carried at cost and
adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the associate or joint venture's
net assets less any identified impairment loss,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). The profit or loss for the year includes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the associate or joint venture for
the year, including any impairment loss on the
investment in associate or joint venture recognised
for the year. The Group's other comprehensive
income for the year includes its share of the
associate or joint venture's other comprehensive
income for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associate and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the associate or joint venture. Where unrealised
losses on assets sales between the Group and its
associate or joint venture are reversed on equity
accounting, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group's perspective. Where
the associate or joint venture uses accounting
policies other than those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to
conform the associate or joint venture's accounting
policies to those of the Group when the associate
or joint venture's financial statements are used by
the Group in applying the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEETBERBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group's share of losses in an associate
or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate or joint venture, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate
or joint venture is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in its associate or joint venture.
At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in associate or joint venture is
impaired. If such indications are identified, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as
being the difference between the recoverable
amount (i.e. higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) of the associate or joint
venture and its carrying amount. In determining
the value in use of the investment, the Group
estimates its share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate or joint venture,
including cash flows arising from the operations of
the associate or joint venture and the proceeds on
ultimate disposal of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.

72

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

2.4

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method
from the date when it ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture. If the retained interest in that former
associate or joint venture is a financial asset, the
retained interest is measured at fair value, which
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
as a financial asset in accordance with HKFRS 9.
The difference between (i) the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate or joint venture;
and (i) the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the equity method was discontinued,
is recognised in the profit or loss. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would have been required if the
associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by the investee would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2.

FTESHBERBE#)

2.4

REAREERHE)

BETHUBEQARTESE
BENINEEEEREARE
HIEE B EL L ERERE o W
ZABE AR A EREARE R
SRTREE  ARRE#EDSEA
REEME  UREBEFBVHRS
EHFEIRNAER DT REER
Kz AR EERIEERAEE - &
()VET R B #E o J th B B2 R A=K
RELEI DR ZEMAFREA
ZRAREE R IEERERE
EARERAELRCER IR
IREEAER © BHN - ARE ST
Al EL A 2 T Y P RERR B X B 2
RBRHAECRAB MBS ER
HEZBERRRELELECEHR
HERBEEXRBEMERENRR
HEEARR - Bt - HAEBREEE
77 PR E At 2 Was P RERR 2 MR R Bk
EESNEEHMEEXLRERE
MoEERS  ABEBRKLER
AR > BB aEREES
ENOBRERE(EREN D AN
) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RAR M

for the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is
also the functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated (i.e.
only translated using the exchange rates at the
transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity.
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2.

74

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’'s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed
to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but
they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially
recognised at acquisition cost, including any cost
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the
location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
the Group’s management. They are subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

20% to 33"°%
10% to 50%
20% to 25%
25% to 30%

Leasehold improvements
Computer and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Estimates of residual value and useful life are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2.6

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance, are charged
to the profit or loss during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

2.7 Development costs

2.7

Costs associated with research activities are
expensed in profit or loss as they occur. Costs
that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition

requirements:

(i)

demonstration of technical feasibility of the

prospective product for internal use or sale;

(ii)

there is an intention to complete the

intangible asset and use or sell it;

(iii)

the Group's ability to use or sell the

intangible asset is demonstrated;

(iv)

the intangible asset will generate probable

economic benefits through internal use or

sale;

(v)

sufficient technical, financial and other

resources are available for completion; and

(vi)

the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset can be reliably measured.
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2.

76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Development costs (Continued)

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development activities along with an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. The costs of
development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are recognised as intangible
assets.

All other development costs are expensed as
incurred.

After initial recognition of the development
costs as intangible assets, the intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible
assets are available for use. The following useful
life is applied:

Capitalised development costs 3 years
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described below in note 2.18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are
transferred. A financial liability is derecognised
when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component and are
measured at the transaction price in accordance
with HKFRS 15, all financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, in case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets, other than those designated and
effective as hedging instruments, are classified
into the following categories:

- amortised cost;

- FVTPL; or

= FVOCI.

The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing
the financial asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial
assets that are recognised in profit or loss are
presented within finance costs or other income,
except for expected credit losses (“ECL") of
trade receivables which is presented within other
expenses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are
not designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the financial
assets and collect its contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income in profit or
loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The Group's cash and
bank balances and trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments and value-added tax
recoverable) fall into this category of financial
instruments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment, the Group elects to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling” in equity.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective.

The equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling” will
not be reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established. Dividends are included in “other
income” in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, amounts due to directors and
lease liabilities.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities)
are initially measured at fair value, and, where
applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless
the Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than
lease liabilities) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method except for
derivatives and financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair
value with gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss.

All interest-related charges are included within
finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out
in note 2.14.

Trade and other payables and amounts due to
directors

Trade and other payables and amounts due to
directors are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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2.

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Impairment of financial assets and

contract assets

HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use more
forward-looking information to recognise ECL -
the "ECL model”. Instruments within the scope
included loans and other debt-type financial assets
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and
contract assets recognised and measured under
HKFRS 15 and some financial guarantee contracts
(for the issuer) that are not measured at FVTPL.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including past events, current conditions, reasonable
and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the
instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a
distinction is made between:

- financial instruments that have not
deteriorated significantly in credit quality
since initial recognition or that have low
credit risk (“Stage 1”) and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 2").

“Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date.

“12-month ECL" are recognised for the Stage 1
category while "lifetime ECL" are recognised for
the Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial instrument.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating
ECL and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. These are
the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows,
considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating
the ECL, the Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience and external indicators, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and
contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the ECL rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of default
occurring since initial recognition.
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2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

84

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial assets at the reporting date with the
risk of default occurring on the financial assets
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESHEEBE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Impairment of financial assets and 29 SREERSHNEEZREMRE)

contract assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

- an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A
debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if it has a low risk of default, the borrower has
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables, contract assets and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost are set out in
note 41.4.
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2.

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to
receive from the holder, the debtor or any other

party.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value and are determined using the
first in, first out basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the applicable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2.17) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2.9 and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see note 2.8).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2.17).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.8).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.
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2.

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instruments and the payments
that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to
a third party for assessing the obligations. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.

Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured
at the higher of the amount determined in
accordance with ECL under HKFRS 9 as set out
in note 2.9 and the amount initially recognised
less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised over the guarantee period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Leases

FTESHBERBE®)

214 #HE

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

(Policy applicable from 1 January 2019)

Definition of a lease

For any new contracts entered into on or after
1 January 2019, the Group considers whether a
contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined
as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an identified asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group
assesses whether the contract meets three key

evaluations which are whethe

[re

o the contract contains an identified asset,
which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made

available to the Group;

o the Group has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use,
considering its rights within the defined scope

of the contract; and

° the Group has the right to direct the use
of the identified asset throughout the
period of use. The Group assess whether
it has the right to direct "how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the

period of use.
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2.

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

(Policy applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

For contracts that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone prices.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost, which is made up of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs
incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset at the
end of the lease, and any lease payments made in
advance of the lease commencement date (net of
any lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease
term unless the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.
The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for
impairment when such indicator exists.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

(Policy applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

At the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable payments
based on an index or rate, and amounts expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee.
The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payment of penalties
for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability
will be reduced for lease payments made and
increased for interest cost on the lease liability.
It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or if there are changes in in-
substance fixed payments. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expense in the period on
which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already
reduced to zero.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

(Policy applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

The Group has elected to account for short-term
leases using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability,
the payments in relation to these leases are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 month
or less.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

(Policy applicable before 1 January 2019)

Definition of a lease

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHBEEME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.14 Leases (Continued) 214 HE#E)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

(Policy applicable before 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Operating leases

Where the Group has the right to use assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
time pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Share capital is recognised at the amount of
consideration of shares issued, after deducting
any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition

T NF+_H=1T—HILFE

FTESHBERBE#)

2.17 WAER

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the
Group follows a b-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the

performance obligations

5 Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for
a contract is allocated amongst the various
performance obligations based on their relative
stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price
for a contract excludes any amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time
or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the
promised goods or services to its customers.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

Jewellery Products

(a) Revenue from the sales of gold and
jewellery products for a fixed fee is
recognised when or as the Group transfers
control of the assets to the customer.

(b) Franchise income is recognised on an
accrual basis over the terms of the relevant
franchise agreements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHERHEE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued) 217 WARBRE)
IT Products and Services BRI E o R IR
(a)  Enterprise software products (a)  EEREMED
Revenue from the development of B2 8 5T EE A9 WA BB B
customised software is recognised over R ERAKRNEEBNEY
time as the Group’s performance creates BlERIERABEFIEHINE
and enhances an asset that the customer E -ZRENBHEAHN
controls. The progress towards complete EETRE A ERTE 0 RIS
satisfaction of a performance obligation BEHEASLESDHEHETR
is measured based on output method, FRRIGEE  HEEHOT
which is to recognise revenue on the basis AR ENRBEERERK
of direct measurements of the value of A B ERERMRASE
the services transferred to the customer B R e S ok AR T 15 i
to date relative to the services promised FHERNBELNER °

under the contract, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services.

When the outcome of the contract cannot EAANERELSIBE
be reasonably measured, revenue is B ERFEEAT FREISNE
recognised only to the extent of contract EAA LYK AREZBRA °
costs incurred that are expected to be

recovered.

Warranties associated with enterprise B EEE I ESBBENER
software products cannot be purchased THEBEE  HBEY
separately and are served as an assurance FT& E M6 1€ 8 & (8
that the products sold comply with agreed- REBEBEER)WIRE ©
upon specifications (i.e. assurance- W REBRREBESEESTE
type warranties). Accordingly, the Group BIE379R e - ABE
accounts for warranties in accordance with RSAREBE BERARK -

HKAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”.

Maintenance service income is recognised R3E IRFE IS LA H 40K I1RHH
on a straight-line basis over the terms of FAREIRES L HRER -

the relevant maintenance service contracts.

ZENFFHR HEERERERAR 95



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

IT Products and Services (Continued)

(b)

(c)

System integration

Revenue from sale of complementary
hardware and software products and
software licences is recognised when or as
the Group transfers control of the assets to
the customer.

Professional services

Professional services income are recognised
in the period when the services are provided.

Others

(a)

Consultancy and management fee income
in respect of technical support, consultancy
services and management services are
recognised in the period when services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.
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2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEETBERBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

218 FERMEERE

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment
testing:

o Development costs;
o Property, plant and equipment;
. Right-of-use assets;
o Interest in a joint venture; and

The Company's interests in subsidiaries.

They are tested for impairment whenever there
are indications that the asset's carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.,e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level. Corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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2.

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’'s recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FTESHBERBE®)

2.19 Employee benefits 219 EERF

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF") Schemes Ordinance, for
all of its employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in the PRC, Taiwan, Malaysia and
Singapore are required to participate in the central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees rendered services
during the year. The Group's obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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2.

100

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowing costs

2.21

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income earned on the temporary investment
of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit
for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, an associate and a joint venture
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly to equity.
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2.

102

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if:

(a)

the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a)

the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEETBERBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Segment reporting 222 2K

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Jewellery Products: design and sales of
gold and jewellery products

o IT Products and Services: provision of
information technology services and
sales of products including enterprise
software products, systems integration and
professional services

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTHE#MES)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Related parties 2.23 FAHET
For the purposes of these consolidated financial MASEAUBRRME - HFAE
statements, a party is considered to be related to ATRIBR » AR AL B3R A B A
the Group if: SEEEH -
(a)  the party is a person, or a close member of (a) WAFEUATER - iR AL

that person’s family and if that person: HZ AT 2 ERRENK S E

REE AR -

(i) has control or joint control over the (i) = e LR B AR E
Group; ;

(ii) has significant influence over the (i) HAEBBEEAFE
Group; or A=

(i) is a member of the key management iy ArEENIANEBRE
personnel of the Group or of a parent ARAIETEBEEENX
of the Group. 8 e
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2. SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEETBERBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Related parties (Continued) 2.23 RBAEERL ()

(b)  the party is an entity and if any of the (b)  WTFE THEAIRME - BRZ
following conditions applies: FREEANSEGEE

(i) the entity and the Group are members i) ZEREAERER
of the same group. —&EEZKERF o

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint (ii) —EBRAS—EBEBRZ
venture of the other entity (or i RN A R o
an associate or joint venture of a (kE—EBAKE
member of a group of which the REZEBETKE
other entity is a member). NEZBERTIHE

BE) o

(i) the entity and the Group are joint (i) ZEBHAAEEHE
ventures of the same third party. R—F=Fza&ED

=,

(ivy  one entity is a joint venture of a (ivi —EBARF-HE®
third entity and the other entity is an ZEEBLEMBS—F
associate of the third entity. BRAAZE=ZFEE

ZEEENE] o

(v)  the entity is a post-employment (v) ZERANE B H
benefit plan for the benefit of AEEB @ BE
employees of either the Group or an HIEBEBAR 2B
entity related to the Group. BigES®FFE -

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly (i) FZEBX@MHERIA
controlled by a person identified in (a). TRk L FES] ©

(viil  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) (@) () Fraskpl A £ 5%
influence over the entity or is a member EREEATENK
of the key management personnel of BZEBR(ZE®E
the entity (or of a parent of the entity). ZHRRCEEE

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group (viii)  MAREEFAREET
of which it is a part, provides key NAREETEEIEE
management personnel services to ANBEREHE RS E
the Group or to the parent of the B—MmMFHEER TR
Group. EAKE o

Close members of the family of a person

ZREALTZIABRERBE

are those family members who may be WERZBEES GETERAA
expected to influence, or be influenced by, HEIZIANTHIZATTE

that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3.

106

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2019

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new and amended HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group's
operations and effective for the Group’'s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK (IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 “Leases” replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” along
with three Interpretations (HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 “Operating Leases-Incentives” and HK(SIC)-Int
27 "Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease”). HKFRS 16 has been
applied using the modified retrospective approach,
with the cumulative effect of adopting HKFRS 16 being
recognised in equity as an adjustment to the opening
balance of accumulated losses for the current period.
Prior periods have not been restated.

For contracts in place at the date of initial application, the
Group has elected to apply the definition of a lease from
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 and has not applied HKFRS
16 to arrangements that were previously not identified as
lease under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.

As a lessee, the Group has elected not to include initial
direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset
for operating leases in existence at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, being 1 January 2019. At this
date, the Group has also elected to measure the right-
of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease liability
adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments that
existed at the date of transition. The discounting effects
of refundable rental deposits paid included in other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were considered
insignificant and no adjustment was made at transition.

Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application, the Group
has relied on its historic assessment as to whether
leases were onerous immediately before the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16.

BRANFTR] M R ARIERT B R T T

HEER| &)

R-ZB-hF-A-HIEKFEKZ
FEMBERZHIT LR EBTER
P |ERER(E)
BRI S EERE 1655 HE

BV BREERF16REE IBRE B
SRHERIE17RHE AR =HZE(A
BEE(EBRTHREREEES) —RES
AR ETREREREHE] - HBCER
REZET) REFIRICEHEE
BIRBEA(EAREZEY) REF27
SIS REEERER AR S 2AR]) °
BV BRRENE165EEER - B
RAKIERTEIE RN B BT BmERE
16 R BN ERER - 1ER
HAHR R BERVEHRNARE - B
BAfEAR T ES ©

ARBEXEABHITINEHNME - A%
BEEERATEGHENFITRRER
(BB REREBELZEE) —REFIT
(MIEERFBHRRLERNE165F)RTEE
MERERTAIRBEE S ERFITHRK
FrE(ERMBHRERERES) —R2EF4
SR SERRI A ER R -

N EEMBREERF 1655 REMA
HEIZZE-NF-A-RB)EFEZKE
HE  AEBEEREAENEERRTELHR
BEER TIAREERA - KA - K
SETEEZRAENHERENSER
EFAEEE  YRBEEEACDHFEN
EABENREAHEMNFETRAE - StA
Hip YRR ~ e RBNHANT A
EOBESHENMRATZERERTEXR
ARERSILEELFE -

AEERERERAZERYAREREEE
EITRERR - MEBKRBESLFE - AT
HERERERETEMBRE LT 165
EARMEEREEHE -

TNFER HEERERERAR 107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

On transition, for leases previously accounted for as
operating leases with a remaining lease term of less
than 12 months, the Group has applied the optional
exemptions to not recognise right-of-use assets but to
account for the lease expense on a straight-line basis
over the remaining lease term. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
recognised under HKFRS 16 was 4.35%. The Group has
benefited from the use of hindsight for determining lease
term when considering options to extend and terminate
leases.

The following is a reconciliation of total operating
lease commitments at 31 December 2018 to the lease

BRANFTR] M R ARIERT BB T T

EEER| (&)

R-ZZB-hF-A-HIEKFEKZ
FEMBERZHITLREBTER
PEmERER(E)

BB A ERE 165 HE /(&)

RBERE - ERREERE A REE
ARSBEBERN T —EAZHEE  A&H
REVEEBMR S  THRAEREEE W
ERFSGHEBANEREREEERAR
RRIE - EANREBEEEVHHREERF16
SREER M E B B E SN R NS
H;/A35% - AREXERAEEZE - &
AREEERLRK THNEERRHEE
HARR B B o

UFRBE-F—\E+-A=+—R
GEREREEERBAE—F—NF— A

liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019: —HERNHEEEE ZHER
HK$°000
F#& T
Total operating lease commitments RZZE—-N\F+_A=+—RHEEN
disclosed at 31 December 2018 ST ERIEREE 3,323
Recognition exemptions: HWREAR -
— Leases with remaining lease term of —FpHEEB LR 12 AMEE
less than 12 months (2,157)
Operating leases liabilities before FHRANKEHERE
discounting 1,166
Extension option reasonably certain to be A IEFEFE 15 F171F AL B 24
exercised 267
Discounting using incremental borrowing  R-_E—hE— A —BHIZEER
rate as at 1 January 2019 FZELIR (64)
Total lease liabilities recognised under RZEBE—NF—A—BIREEENE
HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 HEEAF 1R ERNEERERTE 1,369
Classified as: SHKEA
Current lease liabilities nEBHEAE 785
Non-current lease liabilities FERBEEAE 584
1,369
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. A IRKEITEEBUK

HKFRSs (Continued) HEQ#)
New and amended HKFRSs that are effective R-ZE-hF—-—A—HIHZMKBZ
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January FEHEERZHITLREEITESR
2019 (Continued) Mg EER (&)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) BB B ERE 165 THE (&)
Total impact arising from transition to HKFRS 16 BEZE B BREERE16RTEELZ
Y
E
The following table summarises the impact of transition TR EEE AR ERELERFE 1658
to HKFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated statement of HAEER -_ZE—hWEFE— A —HZLZEEH
financial position at 1 January 2019: BRI E -
HK$'000
FAT
Increase in right-of-use assets FAEEEE 1,369
Increase in lease liabilities HEBGELM 1,369

ZENFFHR HEERERERAR 109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

3.

110

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.
HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform!
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material’
HKAS 8

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

g Effective date not yet determined

- Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of
the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group's
accounting policy for the first period beginning on or after
the effective date of the pronouncement. These new and
amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.

These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use.

In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the assets are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant estimation.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
were HK$3,313,000 (2018: HK$4,218,000) (note 14) and
HK$644,000 (2018: nil) (note 15) respectively.

B NF+_HA=1T—HULFE
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HI) FEETRIE o
AEBEARKEL G RRR - REETE
£ AUBSHZEATEELRERE
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=1

MR BN R EE 2 FREEA e SRR
O FEEEAFREER/IRE] WA
RIEEB ST ERIEI65 & EREIHER
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EOAWOE - BEEEEGETRER
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H o
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EEEEREER  ZEEMELZER
RenBeRE=HRE  AMFREH
BEAfAAE o
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4.

112

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of financial instruments

not traded in an active market

As at 31 December 2019, financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market including unlisted equity
investments and unlisted private equity fund were carried
at fair value of HK$18,117,000 (2018: HK$11,926,000)
and HK$476,000 (2018: nil) respectively. The fair values
are determined by using valuation techniques, details of
which are set out in note 41.6. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market
participants would price the instrument. The Group bases
its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but
this is not always available. In that case the Group uses
the best information available. Estimated fair values may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an
arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Estimation of impairment of trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits and contract
assets within the scope of ECL

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to
ECL (including trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits and contract assets) based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’'s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period as set out in note 2.9. As
at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits and contract
assets amounted to HK$5,323,000 (2018: HK$6,524,000),
HK$14,490,000 (2018: HK$13,864,000) and HK$6,141,000
(2018: HK$9,456,000) respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from
expected, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade receivables and other items within the
scope of ECL under HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories of gold and jewellery
products is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle.

Management reassesses these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. As at 31 December 2019, the
carrying amount of inventories was HK$55,026,000 (2018:
HK$64,923,000) (note 21).

EESH AT RAE &)

FEZUSEFE

BT MREEMZFEZAERFELA
FEBBRETOGAEERHEERS © %
FHFDRBERTINAREERRED
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5. REVENUE 5 A
The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 REBZ TEEREZSHEAMBHRERM
to these consolidated financial statements. The Group's IR c AEEFARRZWALT

revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZE—)N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#&T T

Sales of gold and jewellery products BEHIKEEMIHE 35,082 16,257
Franchise income FEEFINBEEA 249 302
Enterprise software products EBAESD 27,587 25,950
Systems integration ZEEK 2,683 4,188
Professional services BHERKE 32,891 50,528
98,492 97,225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WAE)

REFEFEHNZWADE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

AEBATYERE R LR R RIMET
SEREREEERMEEEE R MREE

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of
goods and services over time and at a point in time

in the following major product and services lines and AU
geographical market:
Sales of
gold and Enterprise
jewellery  Franchise software Systems  Professional
products income products integration services Total
ESHE  BEMEE
Em$#E KA CERHER AERR BXR% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR THRT THT
For the year ended BE-E-1E
31 December 2019 TZRE+-HLEEE
Timing of revenue WA RER R
recognition
- At a point in time — RIS 35,082 - - 2,683 - 37,765
- Qver time — R - 249 21,587 - 32,891 60,727
35,082 249 21,587 2,683 32,891 98,492
Geographical markets WEmS
- Hong Kong 5% - - 6,609 - - 6,609
- PRC and Taiwan —-HEREE 35,082 249 17,277 2,683 32,705 87,996
- Southeast Asia -Rige - - 3,701 - 186 3,887
35,082 249 21,587 2,683 32,891 98,492
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5. REVENUE (continued) 5.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (Continued)

WA &)
REEFAHNZWADEE)

Sales of gold Enterprise
and jewellery Franchise software Systems  Professional
products income products  integration services Total
HEeHE  BITNEE %
EmiEE KA BHER ZBEM EXRH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TAT TAT
For the year ended 31 BE-E-N\F
December 2018 +ZA=t-HLEE
Timing of revenue WA RERA
recognition
- At a point in time — IR % 16,257 - - 4,188 - 20,445
- Over time Gl - 302 25,950 - 50,528 76,780
16,257 302 25,950 4,188 50,528 97,225
Geographical markets WEmE
- Hong Kong — &% - - 6,493 - = 6,493
- PRC and Taiwan -hERAE 16,257 302 13,323 4,188 49,551 83,621
- Southeast Asia -R@E - - 6,134 - 977 7,11
16,257 302 25,950 4,188 50,528 97,225
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. TEER

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, have identified the following
products and service lines as operating segments.
Details of which are further described in note 2.22.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic

decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment
operating results.
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6.

B NF+_HA=1T—HULFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEBR#®
2019
—E-NEF
Jewellery IT Products and
Products Services Total
EMREER
KEEM & AR 7% @at
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#& T F#E T F#&T
Revenue — From external WA — 3k B HMEB
customers b= 35,331 63,161 98,492
Reportable segment revenue T 235 UK A 35,331 63,161 98,492
Reportable segment loss MBRFT BB AT AT
before income tax 2R BEER (11,852) (2,783) (14,635)
Interest income B Wz 13 38 51
Depreciation e (1,128) (917) (2,045)
Loss on remeasurement EMFTEXRFEA
of previously held equity e E DR
interest in a joint venture Z &8 (147) - (147)
Net gain on disposal of HERBARZ
subsidiaries gt - 308 308
ECL allowance on other EbERFIEZ A
receivables H{EEEIERE - (9) (9)
Share of results of a joint FBih—REEhE
venture ZHELE (2,510) - (2,510)
Net loss on written off/ WisHHEwE -
disposal of property, plant BRE K&
and equipment FE1E (596) - (596)
Written off of contract assets & #)&EM - (525) (525)
Finance costs % &R (6) (47) (53)
Reportable segment assets T 25 PEE 304,046 62,112 366,158
Additions to non-current FRRBDEH 2
segment assets (other than EMEBEE (SR
financial instruments) during T ARSI
the year 934 962 1,896
Reportable segment nE2{KoPEE
liabilities 13,550 235,692 249,242
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6.

118

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6. DIHER(E)

2018
—E-N\F
Jewellery  IT Products and
Products Services Total
AMEHE R
KEBEM N AR 7S 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT T
Revenue — From external 1 N = EIN:
customers zpE 16,559 80,666 97,225
Reportable segment revenue 7 235 BUA 16,559 80,666 97,225
Reportable segment loss R RS BLAT Al
before income tax 2R BEER (12,690) (10,520) (23,210)
Interest income Bz 5 28 33
Depreciation e (740) (112) (852)
Net gain on disposal of HEMBATZ
subsidiaries Gy = 87 87
Loss on disposal of financial HEZEAREBE
asset at FVOCI STAEMEE
WEHSmEE
pd) i - (117) (117)
ECL allowance on other Hihpr a2 18
receivables HEEBERE - (126) (126)
Share of results of an FEAG — 1B & 2 A
associate L HEE = 175 175
Loss on deemed disposal of  1R{EHE —EEE&
an associate NE|Z BB - (6,837) (6,837)
Net loss on written off/ sy, HEDmE
disposal of property, plant W= R
and equipment FIEE - (10) (10)
Reportable segment assets T Z2HHPEE 315,131 60,656 375,787
Additions to non-current FRREBDEH 2
segment assets (other than ERBEE(ER
financial instruments) during T ERKIN)
the year 3,927 43 3,970
Reportable segment AE2Hks BAE
liabilities 28,619 238,590 267,209
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for the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The totals presented for the Group's operating segments

6.

B NF+_HA=1T—HULFE

DEER (&)

AEBZERENH2I 2 BBRELZR ST

reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as MEMEYN 7 AREE BB EE > HER

presented in the consolidated financial statements are as ORI
follows:

2019 2018

—E-NF —N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FE T T

Reportable segment assets AIE2HROIEE 366,158 375,787

Eliminated upon consolidation A AR (224,954) (224,954)

Group assets rEBZEE 141,204 150,833

Reportable segment liabilities 2o EBEE 249,242 267,209

Eliminated upon consolidation ARE A BRI 5 (224,954) (224,954)

Group liabilities rEBZAEE 24,288 42,255

The Group's revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are
divided into the following geographical areas:

AEBEZREIBEFPBAREIFREDE
E(ERTARINDRTIERE S

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMBEE ZWA FREBEE

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NF —\F —E-hE —N\FE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F &t FHETT FET T
Hong Kong a5 6,609 6,493 2,694 3,293
PRC and Taiwan PR KA 87,996 83,621 979 912
Southeast Asia RE 3,887 7,111 284 13
98,492 97,225 3,957 4,218

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the
goods were delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset in case of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets and location of operation in case of
interest in a joint venture and development costs.

B[R 2 7 BB AR B S A0 B AR 75
FEXNEBERZEME - IERBE
EZHEIBENENZEFEEZERME
WHRYE  BERKEREREEE

ME)AREBREMEM(HREERE
MR MREKAMS)ME °

—NEFH HER
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6.

120

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DIHER(E)
During the year ended 31 December 2019, HK$20,275,000 RBE_Z—AE+_A=1+—HI=E
or 21% of the Group's revenue depended on a single B AEBEWAF 220,275,000% T
customer in the Jewellery Products segment. During the 21% KEAKRBEERDBZE—RFE - RE
year ended 31 December 2018, HK$36,999,000 or 38% of 2T \F+_A=ZF+—HLFE K
the Group's revenue depended on a single customer in the E B WA A 236,999,0007% 1.58k38% K &
IT Products and Services segment. BB EERERBEHB2E—KF o
OTHER INCOME 7 H Atz
2019 2018
—e-nE = -TN\&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FBTT
Interest income T B Y zs 51 33
Consultancy and management fee BRI REEE N
income 167 287
Government subsidy (note) BT B (B 3E) 161 =
Others Hip 320 135
699 455
FINANCE COSTS 8 HKEA
2019 2018
—ZE-h#F —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FETT
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEeadE BBt 53 =
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e B RAR M

for the year ended 31 December 2019 &%

9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME

Loss before income tax is arrived at

—E-NFTA=+—HIFE

TAX 9.

after charging:

HBR AT 158t A1 &5 18
MR AT S BATATIRE SIA -

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T
Lease charges: HEBMA :
e land and buildings held under o IRBKEMOFE MR
operating leases EEY) = 6,088
e short term leases and leases with o JAE X EREB B 1 #E
lease term shorter than 12 months F16HE 2 RAHE RHEEA
as at initial application of HKFRS 16  +—{AALA T Z2fHE 3,091 z
Total lease charges HEERERE 3,091 6,088
Depreciation: e
e owned assets e EHEBE 1,135 852
e right-of-use assets o FRREE 910 =
Total depreciation FreE®z 2,045 852
Cost of inventories recognised as an RERZNEEKA
expense 30,471 16,584
Cost of services rendered (note) RHRFB KA () 60,810 75,347
ECL allowance on other receivables  HfhEYF I8 2 T8 EA{= B E 1B R E 9 126
Written off of contract assets BREEMHE 525 -
Net loss on written off/disposal of e, HEME  MERSREZ
property, plant and equipment THEE 596 10
Net foreign exchange loss b 5 &5 18 683 2,015
Auditor's remuneration ZEREN BN & 835 1,087

Note:

Cost of services rendered included staff costs of HK$36,921,000

(2018: HK$62,405,000), which is also
benefits expense (note 12).

G

included in employee

BN (FEE12) ©

—E-NEER

IR ARISAL A B 4E B TR 736,921,000 (=

T — \4F : 62,405,000/ 7T) ' 2R INT AR
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FiIfEHBAX

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FET

Current tax — Overseas BNHEAFR 18 — /4N
Current year REE 77 144
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BEEEEET R, (GHBIEEME) 2 (103)
Total income tax expense FRiS i Sz a2 %E 79 41

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the
Group had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the
PRC, the subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of 256% for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
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for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss
at applicable tax rates:

FREHR#)

HERAREARERX R BRETY
iR

2019 2018
—E-hE —EF-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Loss before income tax M FE B AT EE (14,635) (23,210)
Tax on loss before income tax, BINA RIS R AR B AN R A
calculated at the rates applicable REBZ BRETE 2 BR TSR
to profits or losses in the tax AIER 2 Bi1E
jurisdiction concerned (2,201) (3,930)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A1 A 2 T B g 2 2,682 4,205
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBIMA 2 THRIE & (314) (73)
Tax effect of temporary differences  RERERF =B HIBETE
not recognised (1) (27)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RFERTIBE 18 2 FiTH /& 1,051 1,671
Utilisation of tax losses previously not {# FA4c BT R ERFLIEE 1B
recognised (1,140) (1,602)
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BEFEEEE TR, (RERE) 2 (103)
Income tax expense Frs i 79 41

At 31 December 2019, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$78,566,000 (2018:
HK$89,275,000) to carry forward against future taxable
income. These tax losses do not expire under current
legislation except losses of approximately HK$34,256,000
(2018: HK$45,424,000) which will be expired as follows:

RZE-NE+-A=+—08 A&=EH
RIER I EE478,566,000/8 T( =T —
J\4F 189,275,000/ T ) & & - F{EK
RRERFTUA - L EFHIEEBRIERN
ERTAEER - HEEIBH34,256,00008
TT(ZF— )\ : 45,424,000 7T ) A T
HI B fEw

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT

Year of expiry: fEmaER :
2019 —ET—NF - 6,512
2020 — _%?E 3,214 6,093
2021 === 14,418 18,238
2022 === 6,048 8,548
2023 —2@— =% 4,705 6,033
2024 —ZEpUF 5,871 e
34,256 45,424
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11. LOSS PER SHARE 11. BRESE
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to KArEA AELEFRERNERBIVIZAT
owners of the Company is based on the following: ZigstE -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T &t FAIT
Loss =]
Loss for the year attributable to KARIGEE AEEFEANEE
owners of the Company 14,680 23,668
Number of shares K& E
Weighted average number of LB mE T (TAR)
ordinary shares (in thousands) 1,884,402 1,639,424
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the weighted HE-ZE-NFI+-A=1+—HLFE -
average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of BIEsTE SR EAREE 2 L@ %, N
basic loss per share has been adjusted for the Placing in FHEBREER - NFRAKE AR
May 2019 (note 30(ii)). (BFEE30()) °
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the weighted HEZZT-)\F+ZA=1+—HIEFE -
average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of REETEBREABE C EBRMETH
basic loss per share has been adjusted for Rights Issue HHERN T - N\F= AEEAR(HE
in March 2018 (note 30(i)). 30(i) °
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per HREE-T—NLFERZFT-—N\F+=A
share because there were no dilutive potential ordinary =t+—BHIFERTEDETEBENEE
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2EBR  WEREEEBESERERE
2019 and 2018. RER o
12. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 12. EEEFBEXX(EBIEEEEHM)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHT
Wages, salaries and other benefits T8  -HeRAEMEH 36,331 59,377
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RiK& A — E B ETE 6,404 10,237
42,735 69,614
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 13. EEFMREBRESHFIMA L

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ 2 Er

EMOLUMENTS

13.1 Directors’ emoluments 13.1 EEHM
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to EEHMIORBIBEGEM EmAEA -
the GEM Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the EFENBEOIEISINERL AT (H
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of BRESNRER) RO B2 HER
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about T

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Other emoluments

Hiti
Contributions
to defined
Directors’  Salaries and  contribution
fees allowances plan Total
RN
E20d FeRER e @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i sE TET TET TET TET
2019 —B-hF
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chong Yu Ping HERETEE - 600 18 618
Ms. Li Xia FERT (c) - 985 141 1,126
Mr. Chen Yin BRELE - 533 18 551
Independent BUFHTES:
non-executive
directors:
Mr. Lam Tin Faat WRESAE 180 = = 180
Ms. Na Xin e 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhao Xiaxia BEENTL (a) 120 - - 120
420 2,118 177 2,715

“ENEFH WRERERERAT 125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

13. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS AND 13.
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

EEFHREERSHMAL

k3 16

13.1 EEFHME)

Other emoluments
Hiv#ie
Contributions
to defined
Directors’ Salaries and contribution
fees allowances plan Total
TERMRETE
EEika HeRE R &ar
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B zE FET FEL T AT
2018 —E-N\E
Executive directors: HTEE .
Mr. Chong Yu Ping HETLE - 600 18 618
Ms. Li Xia FEL (c) - 951 97 1,048
Mr. Chen Yin BRELAE - 535 18 553
Independent non- BUFHTES:
executive directors:
Mr. Lam Tin Faat WRESE 180 = = 180
Ms. Lu Haina 3Ty (b) 63 - - 63
Ms. Na Xin gt 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhao Xiaxia HEERT (a) 57 - - 57
420 2,086 133 2,639
Notes: BiaE -
(a) Ms. Zhao Xiaxia was appointed as an independent (@) HEEBLLIR-_ZT—/\FtA
non-executive director of the Company on 9 July NEEZREAARBE LIS
2018. TES -
(b) Ms. Lu Haina resigned as an independent non- (b) EegLtRN —T-N\FLtA
executive director of the Company on 9 July NWBBERRBRBEIIERITE
2018. %
(c) Ms. Li Xia is also the Chief Executive Officer (c) FELITNABARBITHE

of the Company and her emoluments disclosed
above include the services rendered by her as
the Chief Executive Officer.
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13. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13.1

13.2

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
(2018: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The

13. EEFMREZREEHEMA L
k3 1)

13.1

13.2

EEHME)

HE_Z—NEFER_ZE—N\F+=
A=+—BLFE  AEETEM
FRMESZHHFHIEAMALER
FMAREE R 2 REN K AEHEEH:
E -

HE T NER_T—N\F+=
A=+—HBLFE  IEBEEERE
KRB MEEA M T -

TEBRESHMA L ZFMH

FR - AEERESESHFMALE
BR=2(ZF-\F: =ZR)8F -
HFME A LD RBR - £/
BTIME(ZT—\F: MB)RS

emoluments of the remaining two (2018: two) FHENA T ZEBT ¢
individuals during the year are as follows:
2019 2018
=e—nE TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&ET T
Salaries and allowances Fre KoEEh 720 720
Contributions to defined E R RETEIH
contribution plan 30 27
750 747
The emoluments fell within the following band: FENRNUTER :
Number of individuals
BT A
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E—-N\F
Emolument band: HMEE -
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

14. Y% - BEERE

EQUIPMENT
Computer
Leasehold and office  Furniture and
improvements equipment fixtures ~ Motor vehicles Total
RENZE ERkR
®E BAERE GHREE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT BT FHTT BT
At 1 January 2018 R=2-NE-A-H
Cost BUR 2,024 12,726 7,033 830 22,613
Accumulated depreciation and 2 ERFESE
impairment losses (1,956) (12,464) (6,255) (782) (21,457)
Net book amount REFE 63 262 778 48 1,156
Year ended BE-E-N\E&
31 December 2018 TZREZ+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 68 262 778 48 1,156
Exchange differences EREE (2) (8) (30) (3) (43)
Additions NE - 54 170 3,746 3,970
Disposal/Written off HE /s = (10) = = (10)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR
(note 38(b)) (MizE38(b)) - (3) - - (3)
Depreciation ik (47) (88) (240) (477) (852)
Closing net book amount FAREFE 19 207 678 3,314 4,218
At 31 December 2018 and 1  R=F-N\E+=A=1+-H
January 2019 k=B-N§-A-H
Cost AR 1,946 12,215 6,844 4,529 25,534
Accumulated depreciation and  ZHTERESSE
impairment losses (1,927) (12,008) (6,166) (1,215) (21,316)
Net book amount as at 31 R-B-NE+-A=+-H
December 2018 WEREFE 19 207 678 3,314 4,218
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y¥ - BERRHE =)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Computer
Leasehold and office  Furniture and
improvements equipment fixtures Motor vehicles Total
HENE ElR
%% N BREEE AE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THR TR T TR TiEx
Year ended 31 December HZ-E-NE

2019 TZREZ+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FNEmFE 19 207 678 3,314 4,218
Exchange differences ERER 6 (3) (1) - 2
Additions NE 124 82 - - 206
Disposal/Written off e/ - (27) (564) (5) (596)
Acquired through business BREBA G (F337)

combination (note 37) 530 22 120 - 672
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR (F38()

(note 38(a)) (35) (19) - - (54)
Depreciation ik (198) (74) (110) (753) (1,135)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 446 188 123 2,556 3,313
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H
Cost AR 2,329 10,781 571 4,498 18,179
Accumulated depreciation and  ZHHTERIEEE

impairment losses (1,883) (10,593) (448) (1,942) (14,866)
Net book amount REFE 446 188 123 2,556 3,313
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

130

15. FHAEEE

Land and
buildings
T REF
HK$°000
F#E T
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 HN-—_ZE-NE—HB—\B »—ZF—N\F
and 1 January 2019 +ZA=t+t—-HR=Z-hF—HA—H
Cost BN -
Accumulated depreciation Rt E -
Net book amount as at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—B0EREFE -
Adjustment from adoption of HKFRS 16 MBS ISR E R F 1657/ AR (KIFE3)
(note 3) 1,369
Net book amount as at 1 January, as RA—B—BMEREFE K&
restated 1,369
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hF+-A=1+—HLEE
Opening net book amount as at 1 January, R—A—BHEYERFE - L&
as restated 1,369
Exchange differences PE N ZERR (18)
Additions = 1,018
Depreciation e (910)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38(a)) HERB AT (MiFE38()) (815)
Closing net book amount EREmMEE 644
At 31 December 2019 R=FB-hF+=-HA=+—H
Cost B A% 1,506
Accumulated depreciation K E (862)
Closing net book amount FEREEEEE 644
The details in relation to these leases are set out in note BEZSHE ZFBENMEE29 -

29.
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16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

—NEF+ZH=+—HIFE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2019 and 2018 are as follows:

16. RHE LR 2ES

RZE—NEFEr_TE-N\F+-_A=+—
H:  FERBARIZEEBWT :

Place/Country of Particulars of issued and paid Percentage of ownership  Principal
Name of company incorporation Place of operation up capital/registered capital ~interest held by the Company activities
BRTRARRE/ ARAfEHEE
ARER AfRIE/BR  EERY HEREE BazEAl  TEER
Excel (BVI) Limited* British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 5,000 shares of US$1 each 100%# (2018: 100%#)  Investment holding
Excel (BVI) Limited® EBERER &% BONORSRARIZTIRG  100%4(ZF-NE:100%4)  BELR
Excel Consulting and Solutions Malaysia Malaysia 100,000 shares of Malaysian 100% (2018: 100%)  Development of computer software and
Sdn. Bhd.* Ringgit (“MYR") 1 each provision of sale and marketing services
Excel Consulting and Solutions ~~ BRERE SREE 100000REHEE  100% (ZZ-N\E:100%) BEERAHRREBERTSEERE
San. Bhd.* ERECH(EE N2 R
121 Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$13,001,000 80.1% (2018: 80.1%)  Application services provider
121 Limited* & &% 130010008 80.1%(ZB-N\F:801%)  ERZHRHMEES
HR21 Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 93% (2018: 93%)  Development of computer software and
provision of maintenance services
HR21 Limited* £ B phive BH(=F-NF0B%)  FEERAMRRARERH
World Sky International Limited*  British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 1 share of USS1 100%# (2018: 100%#)  Investment holding
HREBARA A" ERERER & RERIZTZRG  100%#(ZF-NE100%4)  REZR
SEAGEFINERAA PRC PRC HK$127,000,000 100% (2018: 100%)  Design and sales of gold and jewellery
{Hong Kong Jewellery products
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited@)**

SEEHEDERAT hE e 127,000, 00087 100%(ZF-N\F 100%)  RAREEEERFEER
MIFEBETERZGERAT  PRC PRC Renminbi ("RMB")6,000,000 100% (2018: 100%)  Development of computer softwars and
(Excel Solution Technology provision of maintenance services

Limited@)**
MIEEBEAERZRER T i AR (T ARE])6,000,0007 100%(Z5-N\F:100%)  BESKAMREERERE
AR
LRE ) ERAT PRC PRC HK$20,000,000 100% (2018: 100%)  Development of computer software and
(Excel Software (Shenzhen) provision of maintenance services
Co., Limited@)**
FERARINERAA ] hE 2000000087 100%(=F-N\F:100%) FEEKAHRREFERE
SEAERHRRLEERAT  PRC PRC US$1,700,000 Nl (note 38(al} (2018: 100%)  Provision of professional services and
(Excel Technology (Shanghai) systems integration
Co., Limited@)**
FEAERARR(EE) HE e 1,700,000% 7 Z(Mits) RESZRBRZGEN

BRARH

(ZZ-N\F:100%)

ZENFFHR HEERERERAR
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Percentage of ownership
interest held by the Company
LG it litE ]

BHEZEA

16. RHIB AR 2= (&)

Principal
activities

IEER

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
Place/Country of Particulars of issued and paid
Name of company incorporation Place of operation  up capital/registered capital
BEARARRA/
AR AMRIE/BR  EENY AMERFEE
SRR ARAR PRC PRC US$70,000
(Excel Global IT Services
(Hangzhou) Co., Limited@)**
BEENRMERAA P L 70000%7
HIIERRERAERAR Taiwan Taiwan New Taiwan Dollar (*NT$")
(New River Information 11,913,620
Technology & Services Co.,
Limited@)*
HIERBBRRERAA RE RE mak(Hakl)
11,913,620
FESEARCRMEEILE PR PRC RMB10,000,000
RAA
(Dongguan Excel International
Finance and Technology
Incubation Centre Company
Limited@)**
SERERSBNERLALE  BE el AR10,000,0007
NG
AR EARA PRC PRC FMB100IL,00
("Shenzhen Yu Tak Jewellery
Co, Ltd." @)*
RGEFRERRA i i
# Issued capital held directly by the Company
* Limited liability company
** Wholly foreign-owned enterprise
@ The English names of the PRC or Taiwan companies

are translation of their Chinese names for identification
purpose only and are not their official names

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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100% (2018: 100%)

100%(=F—\¥ : 100%)

100% (2018: 100%)

100%(=ZF—/\F 1 100%)

100% (2018: 100%)

100% (ZZ—/\F : 100%)

100% (note 37) (2018: joint
venture of the Group (note 18))

ARH10,000,0007  100%(F&E37)(ZE-NE

rEERELR(HE18)

Provision of professional services

RREZRH

Provision of professional services

RREZRY

Development of computer software and
provision of maintenance services

REEREN LR RERS

Wholesaling and retailing of gold, platinum,
diamond, karat gold, jade and jewellery
products

Bt #2ER K& FERGE
EnfiERsE

# ARBEEFADBITRA

* BRRAA

*x SNEBEDE

@ TR EERBRNEXEET
HehxafEs o EH#ER
[E e

ERINRZARRMBAR - NEERA
BASBEAXERTIEFEARBRAE
BREEZEED - EERRIILEM
MBAREHNBERBBNILE
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16.

(Continued)

The Group includes two subsidiaries with material

B NF+_HA=1T—HULFE

AEBBEEMREEERNFERERS

B AR 2= &)

5(13F

non-controlling interests (“NCI"), the details and the 7 % b A J)ZW% A BEFERYS
summarised financial information, before intragroup BEREE(ETERRNA T BYHHE)EHY
eliminations, are as follows: /U N
2019
—EB-hEF
i21 Limited HR21 Limited
HK$'000 HK$°000
F#E T FHET
Proportion of ownership interests  JE#p&#Ezs Fﬁ?—rﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁé
and voting rights held by NCI KREZED 19.9% 7%
Current assets mENEE 826 8,004
Non-current assets IERBEE = 16
Current liabilities mENaE (40,805) (9,297)
Net liabilities pEE= N (39,979) (1,277)
Carrying amount of NCI R R 2 BRE A (1,712) 364
Revenue WA - 6,609
Loss for the year FRNEE (6) (455)
Total comprehensive expense for FRREFM X 4258
the year (6) (455)
Loss attributable to NCI FEIERR R S PR 2 E5 1R (1) (32)
Total comprehensive expense JEIE IR E R R L 2 2T X 48
attributable to NCI (1) (32)
Dividend paid to NCI EENE 2 2T 4] = -
Net cash flows used in operating &&EEFEHE RS HE/FEE
activities (5) (316)
Net cash flows used in investing & EFHR RS REFEE
activities - (4)
Net cash flows from financing KEMEEY IR R T
activities - -
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16.

134

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

16. RHIB AR 2= (&)

(Continued)
2018
—E-NfF
i21 Limited HR21 Limited
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FETT
Proportion of ownership interests FEIERRRESR P ISR A RERE S 2
and voting rights held by NCI RAEZBDL 19.9% 7%
Current assets MENEE 831 6,452
Non-current assets ERBNEE - 20
Current liabilities mENAE (40,804) (7,294)
Net liabilities FEfE (39,973) (822)
Carrying amount of NCI FEPERR A 2 BRTEE (1,711 396
Revenue WA - 6,493
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERER(EE) 2,217 (324)
Total comprehensive income/ FA2AERE(FAX)B5E
(expense) for the year 2,217 (324)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to NCI IR R EML 2R T (E18) 441 (23)
Total comprehensive income/ JEE RS R L 2 2 E
(expense) attributable to NCI (FZ)4a%E 441 (23)
Dividend paid to NCI BT IR R IR = =
Net cash flows used in operating K& EFHA RS HEEE
activities (5) (3,241)
Net cash flows used in investing KRETHEHA 2B E RS /FEE
activities — (22)

Net cash flows from financing
activities

KERMEED HSREFR
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17.

FF 85 R 3R B R E

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

As at 1 January 2018 and up to the date of Completion
(as detailed below), Excel Technology International (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Excel HK") was an associate of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2018, an
existing shareholder of Excel Technology International
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Excel HK"), Passion Investment
(BVI) Limited, has subscribed for 18,000 new ordinary
shares of Excel HK ranking pari passu with existing
shareholders at a consideration of HK$1,800,000 (the
“Subscription”). The Subscription was completed on 29
March 2018 (the “Completion”). Upon the Completion,
the Group's interests in Excel HK was decreased from
50% to 5%. The Group has accounted for the 5%
interests in Excel HK as financial asset at FVOCI (non-
recycling) whose fair value at the date of deemed
disposal was HK$860,000. The loss on deemed disposal
of an associate recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018, as follows:

17.

B NF+_HA=1T—HULFE

R—EBE QT 2 ER

R-E—N\FE—F—BEEKBH(FHE
MR EBRBEEB(ESE)BRA A
([HEBEBDAAEBZBERT - B
HE_Z—)\F+-_A=+—BLFE -

EBBEEE(EB)BRARIERE
1)z —ZIE B EPassion Investment
(BVI) LimitedRiELEEH 18, ooouxéiiiﬁ
ERREBERSMUNT L RBE KB
2%1,800,0005’%;%((3%E%$1EJ) ° JJ%%
HER-_Z—N\FZA-_thB=K(R

K1) RERE @ REBREBEE 2
HHE50%BES% - AEEBREERES

Z5%EmARSRAABEFARMEE
WeamemEE(TA8I8E)  HRRIED
EEHHE’J’A/‘M {8 4860,000%& 7T ° EA%Z
“E-N\Ft-A=t—HLHEE -

%EEEE BAEHE— FEJH?M“TZJ%TEZZD

7|

Year ended

31 December 2018
BE-_Z—N\#F
+=—A=+— EI&EJ*
HK$'000

T

Fair value of investment retained (5%) REBIRE(
Less: carrying amount of 50% investment on

the date of loss of significant influence

Loss on deemed disposal of an associate

8V & — R

5%).2

NREE
B REREATENEHL0%
& ZREE

LREIZER

860

(7,697)

(6,837)

From 1 January 2018 to
29 March 2018 (date of
Completion)
R=-Z2—N\E—HF—HZ
—Z—-N\F=B=+AhH

(SR A &)

HK$'000

FHET

Revenue WA 28,648

Profit for the period and total comprehensive  EP % F & HA A 2 UG A 4828

income for the period 350

Dividend received from the associate ELANEII o)) =
Group's share of results of the associate for HAREEERIE N RINELS

the period 175

—NEFH HER

“?
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17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

On 31 August 2018, the Group disposed the remaining
5% interests in Excel HK whose fair value at the date
of disposal was $1,040,000 at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$923,000, resulting in a loss on disposal
of financial asset at FVOCI of HK$117,000.

17. A—

T NF+_H=1T—HILFE

ﬁ%MATZ%E%J
R-E—NENA=+—H KEEHE
mfﬁﬁ B2 T b% (R HEHHM
NRBIEA1,040,0007T) * BERE ALY
923,000/ 7T  EAHEEZ AL EER A

HEfrmlamermEE 2EE 117,000
BT e

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. A—EEELE LR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T FHEIT
Cost of investment in a joint KE—HEEPEZKA
venture = =
Share of post-acquisition results  fE{LUEE1E %Ziﬁﬁﬂﬁ’i\ﬁ
and other comprehensive WA - FOBRE WK
income, net of dividends
received - _
Notes: BT
(a) In August 2018, a subsidiary of the Group and an (a) RZZE-—NFNR  XEBE—FEH
independent party, Mr. Zhu Jun (“Mr. Zhu") have BARHEBYE=FRBEETRE
established a joint venture named as Shenzhen Yu Tak ij)ﬁk*/\%ﬁﬁx B EHREFR
Jewellery Co., Ltd. (“SZ Yu Tak Jewellery”). Pursuant to T(f/ YW EKRE]) - BRIESLH
the joint venture agreement, the total registered capital us% WM E AN A AR 13,000,000
is RMB13,000,000 (approximately HK$14,820,000), 71(%’314,820,000/%75) HR AR
among which, RMB12,350,000 and RMB650,000 12,350,000 7 & A & # 650,000 70( 43
(approximately HK$14,079,000 and HK$741,000) will be 14,079,000 7T % 741,000 7T ) #& o
contributed by the subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Zhu, FIRAEENBARIRKLEELE - A
respectively. As all decisions about the relevant activities ® }i&ﬁEﬁ%ﬁ%}iﬁ@)ﬂ'ﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁii’]fﬁ?“
require unanimous consent of the controlling parties, % %‘J/\j: BAE - Bt AEEFH
accordingly, the Group accounted for its interest in SZ YN EIRE M 1’F75'5/\5£/¢\%)\
Yu Tak Jewellery as a joint venture. BE C
As at 31 December 2018, both the subsidiary of the RZE—N\F+ZA=1+—8  K&£E@
Group and Mr. Zhu had not yet contributed any capital Mﬁ%@ﬂ&%ﬁii@ﬁéﬁiﬂ’\“ﬁ}%&
investment in the joint venture and details of the capital ANERER - BRERNFEENFER
commitment are set out in note 34. Bi3E34 ©
(b) In June 2019, capital contribution of HK$2,943,000 was (b) —NEFERA - BBBAEERE
made by the Group to SZ Yu Tak Jewellery through 1451 ﬂ”ff‘t 1B PR 318 2,943,000/ L&
capitalising the amount due from SZ Yu Tak Jewellery b - FRIEHEREIELERNEE
to the Group of HK$2,943,000, which did not result in 2,943,000 7T + B EERANERE &
change in voting rights of the Group and Mr. Zhu. The KREAMERREZS - CEH KK
unrecognized share of loss and other comprehensive AL B 18398,000B T R KM 2|
expenses brought forward of HK$398,000 and 21,0008 7C © ARAEELEIE
HK$21,000 respectively and the current period’s share of 2,112,0005%73&,&1@%@%1)\9,0005%
loss and other comprehensive income of HK$2,112,000 TEARREE_Z—NF+= Hff
and HK$9,000 respectively has been recognised in *EIJJ:EVZ@%TQ 5 M E 2 U s
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other RAMER °
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. R—EEELEERE)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) BisE : (48)

(c) On 1 July 2019, a subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Zhu (c) RZE—NFtA—H KEBZHE
entered into a supplementary agreement, pursuant NalEKREFFT MRS - Bt 0 K
to which the Group is entitled to appoint two out of ERAENFIHEREEETehEHT
three directors with equal voting rights in the board —HZBEHDME  BERSRARE -
of directors of SZ Yu Tak Jewellery. As a result of the NEE AT S mEE R ELRE
supplementary agreement, the Group obtained control of ZYEHIRE  MEEWEZE—SHIEEH
SZ Yu Tak Jewellery and further details of the deemed RMIFEIT °

acquisition are set out in note 37.

As at 31 December 2018, particulars of the Group's R-ZE—N\E+-_A=+—H  K&EEE
unlisted joint venture, Shenzhen Yu Tak Jewellery, mERBMERBBHAT+_A=+—8Z2
whose quote market price is not available and having a FELHTAECERIEHEHRE ZFIBMOT:

reporting date of 31 December, are as follows:

Percentage of

Place of interest held
Form of business incorporation and Particulars of indirectly by the
Name of joint venture structure operation registered capital Company  Principal activities
FABESE
SELERR £33 HME LRSS SREAFE BROAh IEER
FEEHREER AR Co-operative joint PRC RMB13,000,000 95%  Wholesaling and retailing
(“Shenzhen Yu Tak venture of gold, platinum,
Jewellery Co., Ltd.")@ diamond, karat gold,
jade and jewellery
products
AEREER AR afFRELE el ARH13,000,0007 %% Ee - H - ER K
 ERNABERN
HERTE
@ The English name of the company is translation of its @ RARZRNEABOEEZEEER XA
Chinese name for identification purpose only and is not Mo EEER  WIEHTEXETE -
its official name.
Shenzhen Yu Tak Jewellery Co., Ltd is a strategic TN ELE AR AT ANEE T BESE
investment for the Group's growth in the sales of gold o BERPEmEHEEES RKEER
and jewellery products in the PRC market. BREFRERIEE o
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18.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. R—BEELE IR @)
(Continued)
Set out below are the summarised financial information HAEZEARZ FINEERETEER
of SZ Yu Tak Jewellery which is accounted for using the WMEHI T -
equity method:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Current assets MENEE N/A RiEF 541
Current liabilities mEEE N/A & A (982)
Net liabilities FEE N/A REHR (441)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: st ALMBERERE :
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY N/A & 28
From 2 August
From 1 January 2018 (date of
2019 to 1 July establishment) to 31
2019 December 2018
“E-N&E —T-)\FN\AZH
—A—H 2ava=E:c)
EZE-NF EZT-)N\F
+tA—H +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Revenue WA 662 =
Other income HAb Wz 8 -
Other expenses HAthfA sz (2,893) (419)
Loss for the period HANEE (2,223) (419)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hi 2wk (%) 9 (22)
Total comprehensive expense for the period A2 [ F 7 458 (2,214) (441)
Unrecognised share of loss for the period KR EEHRNER M
and total comprehensive expense for HAEEATEEL
the period and accumulated losses as at MR EEE
period end = (441)
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19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

19. HthSBMEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-)N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Financial assets at FVOCI (non- BARBETAHEMZEWZEH

recycling) SREE(TEE)

Unlisted private equity fund FETRAREES 476 =
Unlisted equity investments (note (a) 3E Fi AR E (HizE(a) 18,117 11,926
18,593 11,926

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the amount mainly
represented the fair value of 10% interests in an
unlisted private entity incorporated in the PRC, which is
principally engaged in property development, property
leasing and property management services.

The fair values of unlisted private equity fund and
unlisted equity investments have been measured as
described in note 41.6.

(a) RZTB-—NER-ZT—NE+=A=+
—HB - ZeBEIBER—HEELTRA
BENI0%ERNAABE  REEN
REEMAY - TBEREMERE B
EHERMEEERS -

(b) FEETARARERES NIELETRAKE
AR BED WA 6T E ©
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20. DEVELOPMENT COSTS

20. FAERAE

2019 2018
—E-NhE —2-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January n—HA—H
Cost D% 7,052 7,052
Accumulated amortisation Sty (7,052) (7,052)
Net book amount EREFE - =
Year ended 31 December BE+=-HBA=1+—HLEE
Opening and closing net book F# & FERKREFE
amount = =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Cost 2 %N - 7,052
Accumulated amortisation BN - (7,052)
Net book amount BREFE - -

The development costs represented all direct costs
incurred in the development of enterprise software
products and were fully amortised in prior years.
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21. INVENTORIES 21 FE
2019 2018
—E-NhE —2N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Gold and jewellery products: EENHKREER
Work in progress paat e 2 79
Finished goods RIRY Th 53,596 63,362
Packing materials BEME 1,428 1,482
55,026 64,923
22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND 22. SHNEEREHERE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES
22.1 Contract assets 221 GHNEE
2019 2018
—Z-hF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET FET
Contract assets arising from  RIGENELE S HEE
service contracts 6,141 9,456

The balance of contract assets is expected to be
recovered within one year.

BRHEESHRER/BR -—FRAK

@ o
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22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND

142

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

22.2 Contract liabilities

T NF+_H=1T—HILFE

22. SHEBEREGHNERG®)

222 SHERE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Contract liabilities arising FERBLHRRZRIEANELE
from service contracts ZAaMaE
from billings in advance of
performance 6,604 7,935
Contract liabilities arising from $HEEREWREEL ZEK
receipts in advance of sales afE
of goods 159 1,350
6,763 9,285

When the Group receives a deposit before the
sales activity commences or services perform, this
will give rise to contract liabilities.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning
of the year amounting to HK$8,039,000 (2018:
HK$9,459,000) have been recognised as revenue
during the year.

The balance of contract liabilities is expected to
be settled within one year.
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWE SR

2019 2018

—E-hE —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEUE ZER R 5,323 6,524
Less: ECL allowance B TBEEE S ERE = =
5,323 6,524

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values
of trade receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception.

Trade receivables for IT Products and Services are due

AEBEERARWE ZRASEHK
R MEZE/EBRZAABEEREKREREL
BEAESR o

B AR fn IR 2 PR 5 AR SR B

within 0 — 60 days (2018: 0 — 60 days) from the date of BEHBFAEEANTHZE-N\F : EEX
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 90 days TH)REE - EaBBANTHZE
overdue are requested to settle all outstanding balances BATCEBERHBREELEHREB T I ERE
before any further credit is granted. —#EE o

The Group’'s sales of gold and jewellery products

AEB B RREEMEETEZRRER

comprised mainly cash sales and credit card sales to TEEXPZRSHEREARHEE - UK
retail customers and credit sales to franchisees which MSTNEEZEEHE  EEHEEE

are due within 0 — 60 days from the date of billing.

Based on the invoice dates (or date of revenue
recognition if earlier), the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, net of ECL allowance, was as follows:

HETEXTHEARE -

RiFHZEH AW ATER B H(HE
2)) RURESER(CHREREEER
Bl ZBREEDITINT -

2019 2018

—E-NF —N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THAT

0 - 30 days 0 — 30H 2,212 6,017
31 - 60 days 31 — 60H 27 438
61 — 90 days 61 — 90H 2,906 -
Over 90 days @90 H 178 69
5,323 6,524
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EWEZ R #)

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables EWE SENTEHEEEERE 2SN

is as follows: T
2019 2018
—Z-NE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET FET
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&& - 106
Written off i85 - (106)
Balance at 31 December RT+-—A=+—Bz&% - =

144
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24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 24. HMEWRIE - BERENLRE
AND PREPAYMENTS
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHAT
Other receivables (note (i) and (ii)) £t jiE ek 38 (B3 () B (ii)) 9,333 3,819
Deposits bl 730 740
Amount due from former JE U BT 2 B R (BT R Gii))
associate (note (iii) 4,427 8,422
Amount due from former joint JEWRTAEEDE AEDERE
venture/joint venture (note (i) (B EGi)) - 883
Prepayments TR IR 6,716 6,688
Value-added tax recoverable A] Uy [a] 1B F 4,964 6,103
26,170 26,655
Notes: Bt 3T
(i) The movement in the ECL allowance of other receivables U] Hit R FIARRE R BRREE 22D
is as follows: LN
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance at 1 January R—A—HZz&E# 10,640 10,5614
Written off B 6| (10,514) -
ECL allowance recognised during  F AR 7 B EEBEERG
the year 9 126
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—Rz#&s% 135 10,640
(ii) Included in the Group's other receivables as at 31 (i) ARBR-_F-NF+-_A=+—H
December 2019 was advance to a former related ZE{@E&E\&&J’:E@%WHIJ BA B 07 B 5K
party of HK$5,688,000 (2018: nil). The amount due is 5,688\,000%75(:?*/\@ : HR) ° E?
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. FIARMER - T B RARERME
(iii) The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and (i) HEFRARMEI T B RBEER

repayable on demand. (=8
The directors of the Group considered that the fair values of HK%%%%ﬁﬁ@@W%\IE B E RIENFK
other receivables, deposits and prepayments are not materially EREHEN  MRFERZ DA BERRK
different from their carrying amounts because these balances HELREAER -

have short maturity periods on their inception.
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25.

26.

146

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$14,413,000 (2018: HK$13,741,000) of bank balances
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC.
RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods
ranging from 30 days to 60 days (2018: 30 days to 60
days). Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of
the trade payables were as follows:

25.

26.

BERBITER

AEE RS RIBITHEREIE14,413,000
BL(ZZ— \4F :13,741,000/8 7T ) 77
WA BEEREITUARBEZRITE
e AREATATERABREE  RiEF
Bl 2 SNE H I E B IEHI R AETE - &S8R AT
FEARHIARE - AEETEEBBERE
TTHNE R B ER 2 SRITHE AR X AN
ﬁé} °

P & 5 BRFX

HEES TAEEZEEENF=+AE
ATB(ZZ—N\F: =+AEXTAH)-
REZZAH  BENESRAZERD T
I

2019 2018

—E-REF —E-N\EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THAT

0 - 30 days 0 — 30H 1,043 422
Over 90 days @90 H 33 150
1,076 572

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.
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27.

28.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED
CHARGES

27.

Htt BRI REARERER

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Other payables (note (i) H At S R IE (B ) 4,836 7,249
Accrued charges TBREH 1,215 4,317
6,051 11,566
Notes: iz
(i) Included in the Group's other payables as at 31 December (i) KEEBR-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—B2
2019 was staff bonus payable of HK$1,801,000 (2018: H M RIEEE1,801,0008 (=%
HK$2,014,000). —\%F :2,014,000% ) 2 ERF B T7E
4 o
(i) All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values (i) FrESHEBRAME - RAitk iR
of other payables and accrued charges are considered to BHRBAREACEREERREAAAEE
be a reasonable approximation of fair value. ZEBHE o
AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 28. ERESMIE
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest- ENEERELEER  2LWEREX
free and repayable on demand. B -
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29.

148

LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities:

T NF+_H=1T—HILFE

*HEEJE

E@KE :

2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
TET
Total minimum lease payments: IERS AR -
Due within one year —FREIER 477
Due in the second to fifth years RE_EERAFRENE 208
685
Future finance charges on lease liabilities &G &Y REM B (27)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaBEZRAE 658
Present value of minimum lease payments: &EMB&NREHE
Due within one year —F R EIEf 461
Due in the second to fifth years RE_EERFRFNE 197
658
Less: Portion due within one year included & : Bt AREIE ER —F A D HEH
under current liabilities (461)
Portion due after one year included under it AIEREN B EN —F & B HAEZRMH
non-current liabilities 197

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has
not been restated. Details for transitions to HKFRS 16
are set out in note 3.

The Group has obtained the right to use land and
buildings through three tenancy agreements. The leases
typically run on an initial period of one to three years.
The Group considered that no extension option would be
exercised at the lease commencement date. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the total cash outflows
for the leases are HK$4,039,000.
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30.

SHARE CAPITAL 30. BA
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
BRHEE FHET 17 2% B FHET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of BREE0BT
HK$0.1 each ZEBR
At 1 January and R—A—Bk
31 December +=-A=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETRER
At 1 January n—H—H 1,782,690,000 178,269 1,188,460,000 118,846
Rights Issue (note (i) #ER% (BiTRE()) = - 594,230,000 59,423
Issue of ordinary BBRERTE
shares by Placing A% (FEE())
(note (i) 165,000,000 16,500 - -
At 31 December R+=H
= e 1,947,690,000 194,769 1,782,690,000 178,269
Notes:
PiH5E
(i) In March 2018, the Company issued and allotted
594,230,000 ordinary shares pursuant to the completion (i) N_E—-—NEFE=8 " KXAA
of rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every BR—_E—N\F-_A=-++tH
two existing shares held by the qualifying shareholders AERKREREFEAEMBRRE AR
on 27 February 2018 at the subscription price of HK$0.10 DIET — IR HARRE ) 2 B -
per rights share (“Rights Issue”). The gross proceeds of BB H I 2 SERCA B AR L AR A%
the Rights Issue of approximately HK$59,423,000 was H010B L2 RBEEITRE
credited to share capital of the Company. Share issuance % 594,230,000 % I @ AR ([ 4
expenses that are directly attributable to the issue of 1) o A Z FrS FRIB LA EE L)
new shares amounting to approximately HK$2,470,000 59,423,000 7L E st AKX R A
was accounted for as a deduction against the share RA « BITHROD EE R 2
premium account. & 1D B 1TH X 492,470,000 7T
ABRABRNSERZIRIE -
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

150

(ii)

(iii)

On 8 May 2019, the Company entered into an agreement
for the placing of up to an aggregate of 165,000,000
new ordinary shares to not less than six places at a price
of HK$0.105 per share. On 21 May 2019, the conditions
set out in the placing agreement was fulfilled and the
placing were completed, in which 165,000,000 shares
were placed at HK$0.105 per share (the “Placing”). The
net proceeds of HK$17,064,000 (after deduction of the
placing commission and other expenses of HK$261,000
from the gross proceeds of HK$17,325,000) raised from
the Placing were credited to the share capital and share
premium account of the Company.

The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.
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30. BA(#)

T ()

(if)

(iif)

R=ZZFE—hAhERANB &
AR —DiHE BHER
0105t 2 B M T D RN
& 45 75 B % & #£165,000,000
BFEBER - R-_T—NEHR
AzZ+—8B EEHh#mH
BHEERRKEEE TK -
H # 165,000,000 0% J& 19 2 &
BRo105B B E(ERE D -
RESEENMBREFE
17,064,000 7T (A& HIRFT 15 5K
TH 48 %017,325,000/8 TR &
M4 R EHF 261,000 7T)
FTARR AR IR A R AR5 &
EE °
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31.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31. XATHHERRAER
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
2019 2018
o —T- %
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RSB AR Z s - =
Current assets REEE
Prepayments AR RIE 223 205
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEULHIE A T 218 = 68,829
Cash and bank balances RE NRIBITER 727 5,686
950 74,620
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accrued HEMENFIERTERE A
charges 836 1,621
Amounts due to directors FENEERIE 9,682 20,785
10,518 22,406
Net current (liabilities)/assets #RE(AE) EEFHE (9,568) 52,214
Total (liabilities)/assets less (BR&) BELERRE
current liabilities aE (9,568) 52,214
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) BEZRE (9,568) 52,214
EQUITY R
Share capital A% 7 30 194,769 178,269
Reserves #E 32(a) (204,337) (126,055)
(Capital deficiency)/Total equity (ZZAEAL) PREHATE (9,568) 52,214
Li Xia =8 Chong Yu Ping HETE
Director BE Director -
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32.

152

RESERVES 32. f#E
(a) The movement of the Company’s reserves (a) XATZFESSWOT :
are as follows:
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
% 103 E ZitE#R wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHIT
(note 32(b))
(FI5E32(b))
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZE—N\F
—H—H 220,438 (381,428) (160,990)
Issue of ordinary shares on AAR A E1T L MAR
Rights Issue (note 30(i)) (FfF5E30()) (2,470) = (2,470)
Profit for the year and total FAEFNMFAZE
comprehensive income WA M8
for the year - 37,405 37,405
At 31 December 2018 and R=—Z— )\
1 January 2019 +=-—A=+—H8K
—ZT-NF
—H—H 217,968 (344,023) (126,055)
Issue of ordinary shares by iBiBACE 31T L @A
Placing (note 30(ii) (BFF2E30(i)) 825 - 825
Transaction costs B 1T AR
attributable to issue of R 5ER
ordinary shares by Placing  (F#E30(ii))
(note 30(ii)) (261) = (261)
Loss for the year and total FREENMFAZE
comprehensive expense Bz 4 %8
for the year - (78,846) (78,846)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—h&F
+=A=+—H 218,632 (422,869) (204,337)
(b) Share premium (b) RH=E
The application of the share premium account Binn Bk ERXARERRER
= Lt
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda FA0IREE
Companies Act.
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33.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-
term leases (2018: total future minimum lease payments
payable by the Group under non-cancellable operating
leases) are as follows:

B NF+_HA=1T—HULFE

HERE

REHRAH  EHEENEEAE( =T
—N\F AEEREBETAREILEEE
B EARZ RIEESNRER) R AT
AN

2019 2018

—B-NF —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHAT

Within one year —FR 1,100 2,987
In the second to fifth years BE_EERF - 336
1,100 3823

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had committed to
a lease for land and buildings in which the lease had not
yet commenced. The total future cash outflows for this
lease amounting to HK$993,000 in aggregate which are
included in the table above.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group leases land and
buildings under operating leases. The leases run for an
initial period of one to three years, with an option to
renew the lease and renegotiate the terms at the expiry
dates or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and respective landlords. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

%%%ﬁﬂi%ﬁﬁ%ﬂi%aﬁﬂm&%ﬂﬁﬁfﬁ
o IFHE A 51993,000/8 T 2 K KIS
BEEEETAELR ©

\Hﬂl'H

==y
Vi LE

R=F—N\F+=A=1+—A - FRER
BEETEOEE i RREY o BOHZI)
SREMA—FE=F - HERBRRY
B MR AR B R MR AR BT B

BTN RET BT ER - BOBTE
ERAES -
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34.

35.

154

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

In August 2018, a subsidiary of the Group has entered
into a joint venture agreement with an independent third
party to establish a joint venture in the PRC, SZ Yu Tak
Jewellery, with registered capital of RMB13 million.
Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, the Group
is committed to contribute capital of RMB12,350,000
(approximately HK$14,079,000) before 31 December
2028.

On 1 July 2019, the Group obtained control of SZ Yu Tak
Jewellery and SZ Yu Tak Jewellery became a subsidiary
of the Group. Further details of the deemed acquisition
are set out in note 37.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided guarantee
for the former associate, Excel HK to a third party, in
respect of all monies owed by and/or the obligations and
liabilities of Excel HK to the third party under a service
contract to the extent of HK$213,000. At 31 December
2018, no provision for the Group's obligation under the
guarantee contract has been recognised as no amount
was due by Excel HK to the third party and the directors
considered that it was not probable that the service
obligations to be performed by Excel HK would not be
met.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not provide any
financial guarantees to third parties.
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34.

35.

BARARE

RZE—NENA  AEE—FHFB AR
BB E=HEMAERE - AR EK
VEBLERINEEHRE  FMERAEA
R#13,000,0007C - IRIEAEWHZE @ A%
BAEAFER_ZE-_NF+_A=+—HAE
& AR #12,350,0007T(4914,079,0007%8
JL) e

R-ZZE-AFLtA—B  AEEREHFI
HIBIRE 2 EHIE - RYEBREK /AN
SEZHBRR - FERERENE—Z
ABENMIEERT -

RZZE-—NAFE+ZRA=+—8H  Kx&EEY
BEEAEREARAE -

BBERELN

RZZE—NFE+-A=+—8  "&EFH
Al E AR ERBBRE—MDREE LM
BT —REB=ZAZHERRR XET
REE  BREBRBAEMZBE-STRHS
B LR A213,000BTT 2R - RZT—
NF+-—A=+—8 HRTEEELE
HBRERZBE=Z BREERBET R
BEATAEEIBITAEBRBGEME - B
ERAEBERBEZOHDEREN2EEIED
B o

RZBE-NAFE+ZA=+—H *5EYL
A5 = RIS ER
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. ABAIRS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BT e AR ISHRE I DR ER
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, 5 /BRI - ERNANEE AR T T
during the year, the Group had the following material UTEARS :

transactions with related parties:

2019 2018
—g-nf “ENE
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
B s AR RattE THET THT
Company in which the director of the company
has interests
AREESRERE DA
- Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company Limited*  Operating lease charges on land and
R TMEEREEHRNERAR) buildings
(“Shenzhen Yihua") (notes a, ¢)
- AR EREEHRHBRAF THRETEEREER
CRYIEE) (fiza - c) = 2,493
Sales of gold and jewellery products
BEeRBEMEE 53 203
Processing fee paid
BERMIER 409 -
Former associate
EILA=N
- Excel HK (note b) Professional fee received
- EBEB(Hzh) ENEXER = 9,238
Professional fee paid
ENZEXER = 1,496
Administration expenses
reimbursements
TIRFA X - 360
Staff cost reimbursements
BIKAHE = 147
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36.

156

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

These

Shenzhen Yihua is a shareholder of the Company as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 and is ultimately controlled
by Mr. Chong Yu Ping, an executive director of the
Company.

The amounts represented the related party transactions
with Excel HK from 1 January 2018 up to the date of
Completion.

The above related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

transactions were conducted in the Group’s normal

course of business and at mutually agreed prices and terms.

The English names of the PRC companies are translation
of their Chinese names for identification purpose only
and are not their official names.

Key management personnel remuneration

The emoluments of the directors of the Company, who
represent the key management personnel during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follow:

36. BB S &)

BT -

(@) RIE-NFERE-N\F+ZA=+
—B - RIBELSRRRZBE - AL
ARABAITESHBEVEERLES -

(b) ZERBEEE _E-\F-A—HELH
EERAMBEEREEZBB IS -

() LR BTy R B IME R BE R i B
WERZH(EERGEMEMAAE =+
)

BHEZXZFONAEEAEXBBIETRENR
BB RIGFETT

* ZEPERRZENBRIEZEET
XarE o EHER  WIFREAAE -

TEEEASMS

RBE_Z-NFR-_ZT-N\F+A=
T—HALFE AEEEF(NETEEE
AB)FHHMT

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —E—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#E T T

Short term employee benefits NMHEERA 2,538 2,506
Post employment benefits BEEL 1218 T 177 133
2,715 2,639
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37.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Deemed acquisition of Shenzhen Yu Tak
Jewellery Co., Ltd. (“SZ Yu Tak Jewellery”)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's interest in SZ Yu
Tak Jewellery was accounted for as a joint venture (note
18).

On 1 July 2019, a subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Zhu
entered into a supplementary agreement, pursuant to
which the Group is entitled to appoint two out of three
directors with equal voting rights in the board of directors
of SZ Yu Tak Jewellery. As a result of the supplementary
agreement, the Group obtained control of SZ Yu Tak
Jewellery and SZ Yu Tak Jewellery became a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group with 95% equity interest
since 1 July 2019. SZ Yu Tak Jewellery is principally
engaged in wholesaling and retailing of gold, platinum,
diamond, karat gold, jade and jewellery products.

The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of SZ

37.

EBEH
BEWBRIBEREERAT (DR
Y EIRE 1)

RZEBE—NFE+—A=+—0  x&EER
FRINMEKRE 7 RN —HAEECEAR
(ftzx18) °

RZZBE-NAFtA—RB  KXEEZHER
BIEREART MW - Bt - AKE
ERNAYHEREESTETEZE=RE
EEFME  HAREFRRE - AEER
I MBS R EIEIRE 2B
FNHEREE T NEFLA—AKA
AEBEHEBBRBIEZIFZEMBAR -
FINBERETEREES  HE - 8
A KE - EREARBERORBELTE -

ARYIEEIRE AR (E B B B AT & B E

Yu Tak Jewellery as at the date of deemed acquisition ENBEZAREBENT -
were as follows:
HK$'000
F &t
Cash and bank balances RE MIRITFRK 120
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 672
Inventories 78 12
Deposits, prepayments and other & - FERAFIEREMER
receivables B 786
Other payables and accrued charges HiEARIELTEIEE R (1,296)
Contract liabilities aHaE (6)
Net identifiable assets acquired Frus g ml s R & EE VR B 288
Non-controlling interests FEPER R = (14)
Fair value of share of net assets at date of ARIEUREE B HIEEEEZEN QAL EBE
deemed acquisition 274
Less: Interest in a joint venture B RN —EEERE R (421)
Loss on remeasurement of previously held E#F:tE%AIEANAS S ¥RV ER
equity interest in a joint venture (147)
Net cash inflow on deemed acquisition: REWE2BEESHRAFE :
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriEiRie MR e EEY 120
—E-NEER HEERERERAR 157
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37.

158

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Deemed acquisition of Shenzhen Yu Tak
Jewellery Co., Ltd. (“SZ Yu Tak Jewellery”)
(Continued)

Since the date of deemed acquisition, SZ Yu Tak
Jewellery contributed HK$647,000 to the Group's
revenue and HK$2,247,000 to the Group's loss for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2019,
the revenue and the loss of the Group for the year
would have been HK$99,154,000 and HK$14,846,000
respectively.

Acquisition of additional interests in SZ Yu Tak
Jewellery

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 16 September
2019 (the "Resolution”), the registered capital of SZ
Yu Tak Jewellery was reduced from RMB13,000,000
to RMB10,000,000, among which, RMB9,999,999 and
RMB1 (approximately HK$11,199,999 and HK$1) will be
contributed by the subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Zhu,
respectively. As a result of the Resolution, the Group's
interest in SZ Yu Tak Jewellery was increased from 95%
to 99.99999%. In October 2019, the Group acquired
remaining equity interest in SZ Yu Tak Jewellery from
Mr. Zhu at a consideration of HK$1.

As a result of the acquisition, the difference between
the consideration paid of HK$1 and the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests acquired of HK$14,000 was
recognised in the capital reserve.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019

37.

EF S 3 )

BEWERBHEREGRAR (R
YIHEHKRE ) (&)

BRERERSR  B#=2—_ZF—hhE+_-A
Z+—HILEE - FIEHERERALEE
H U A &647,00078 T BB A2,247,000
I o

MK BEBEREER_FTE—NF—F—
B BAEEFAKAREBEERD A
99,154,000/ 70 K& 14,846,000/8 7T °

Wi R PR R 2 B S R

BERZZ—NFNA T+ NBRBORZ
R((RrRFR]D  FIHEHRENEIME
A AR #13,000,000 TP EARE
10,000,0007T + H# AR #%9,999,9997T
M ARB17T(4911,199,99958 7T & 178 7T)
BoRBEAEBEMNBRARIRKLERHE -
REZARZERE - NEBRRYIEERE 2
XI5 %L AN 99.99999% « R -T—
NE+A - AEBUREIS THALE
IR BRI EE IR E R BR T AR -

RUEER - 1 BT E M HE 14,0008
TRD B ERREEZEZRERE
RIFEHER o
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. HEMBAT
(a) On 16 December 2019, the Group disposed (a) RZE—NAF+_A+/,H =&«

of the entire interest in a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary, Excelink Development Corporation
(“Excelink Development”), together with Excelink
Development’'s wholly-owned subsidiary, Excel
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Limited to an
independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$100,000, which is settled subsequent to the

reporting date in January 2020.

SEMBYE=ZFLEREEEE
Mf B8 A &) Excelink Development
Corporation([Excelink
Development]) & [ X 2 & [ B
NAEBANEERERF(LEE)EAE
RARIMZHER  ReRER
100,000/8 7T ' ERN 2R B HEN
ZETF-REE -

HK$'000
T
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KEEHECEEREEIW
which control was lost:
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTHER 3,288
Property, plant and equipment LEN e 54
Right-of-use assets FREEE 815
Contract assets EHEE 6,503
Trade and other receivables FEN R 5 R SR Ie F A FE WU GRIE 340
Other payables and accrued charges HEMENRIBERERER (3,653)
Amounts due to the group companies ERAREB RN R I8 (5,688)
Lease liabilities HEaE (816)
Contract liabilities GHBE (1,123)
Net liabilities disposed of HEZEaEFE (280)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBARKS !
Consideration receivable W RE 100
Net liabilities disposed of HEZaEFE 280
Cumulative exchange differences in respect k=B B A &) 3% H T B IREE
of net liabilities of the subsidiaries DERBEZHNBRARBEFE
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on  1HEZRTIE N =58
loss of control of the subsidiaries (72)
Gain on disposal B s 308
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEECZRESRHFE -
Consideration received in cash and cash WEIR & MRS ZEYRE
equivalents _
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of & : HECRERRELZEEY (3,288)
(3,288)
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

160

(b)

On 7 November 2018, the Group disposed
of the entire interest in Excel Technology
International (BVI) Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, to an independent third party
at a cash consideration of HK$1,480,000, which
was subsequently settled in March 2019. The
gain on disposal, net liabilities disposed of (which
represented other payables of HK$4,000) and
net cash outflow arising on disposal at the date
of disposal were approximately HK$1,484,000,
HK$4,000 and nil, respectively.

On 11 December 2018, the Group disposed of
the entire interest in Excelink Technology Pte
Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, to an
independent third party at a cash consideration
of HK$1,000,000. The consideration receivable of
HK$1,000,000 was settled in March 2019.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019

HIFFE

38. HEMWEB AT (&)

(b)

RZE—NF+—HEBH K
EERMBYUF=ZFHLERMEE
% & [ B A 5] Excel Technology
International (BVI) Limited 8y &
B - MeKER,480,0008
T BBEREEEENRZZ—NI
FZRAKB N ELEREE BE
Wz HEZBEFEBIEME
TFIE4,0008 L) R EEEZR
TmHFE D AR 41,484,000
JC ~ 4,000 T T o

RZZE—NF+=_A+—8 " &
EEMBYE=FLERMES
& M /B~ 5] Excelink Technology
Pte Ltd. )&%z - RERER
1,000,000;& 7T ° 1,000,000/ LAY
BRREBER=_Z—NEF=A%E -
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

38. HEMWEB AT (&)

(Continued)
(b)  (Continued) ) (&)
HK$'000
FHEIT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over %k ERGIEZEEREBDIN
which control was lost:
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITFER 2,836
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMERE 3
Trade and other receivables FEUE 2 BR 5k I E A FE UL GRIA 961
Other payables and accrued charges EMEMNFIARTARE A (266)
Trade payables BB SRR (58)
Contract liabilities BHaE (1,081)
Net assets disposed of HECEEFE 2,395
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BHBARZER :
Consideration receivable FEMRAE 1,000
Net assets disposed of HECEEFE (2,395)
Cumulative exchange differences in KEM B A RIE IR A RS
respect of net assets of the subsidiary B ABRECHWBAREE
reclassified from equity to profit or loss  JE{EIERE REHIE X =58
on loss of control of the subsidiary (2)
Loss on disposal HEEE (1,397)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEE4AZRERHEE !
Consideration received in cash and cash IWWHUIR & RIREEEYWRE
equivalents -
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed i : HEZRERBELEEY
of (2,836)
(2,836)

—E-NEER
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39. NON-CASH TRANSACTION 39.

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following non-cash
transaction:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into certain lease contracts related to land
and buildings in which additions to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities amounting to HK$1,018,000 was
recognised at the lease commencement date.

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 40.

ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities can be classified as follows:

HERETRH

BUSHARBREL GBI FRBENR
5/ B8R  ARERFERELTHRS
25 :

JiS —NE+-A=+—HLF
Z $’E@J*“:Fiﬁiiiﬂ3&$§$ﬁf%ﬁ
HEA#K - EPREERMRKBRERRE
EREEEKRHERRE,018000/87T °

MERBEL 2 AEHER

AEERBELRDEEZABESATMT
DS

Amounts due to

Lease liabilities directors
HEBR JEfNEEFIR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT
At 1 January 2018 R=-ZE—N\F—H—H - 20,538
Cash-flows: BE&ERE
Advances from directors BEHXR = 247
At 31 December 2018 and 1 R=ZB-N\E+=-HA=+—H
January 2019 kR=Z-hE—H—H - 20,785
Impact on initial application of HRERE AN BIRELER
HKFRS 16 (Note 3) FE16NTE (H5E3) 1,369 =
Adjusted balance as at 1 R-B-NE-—A—BHNEHAE
January 2019 FE3 1,369 20,785
Cash-flows: HERE
Repayments to directors MESEENRE - (11,103)
Capital element of lease rentals Eﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁﬂfﬁ$fﬁ%ﬁ%
paid (895) =
Interest element of lease rentals BEREEHREN B
paid (53) =
Non-cash: FES
Entering into new leases I FEE 1,018 -
Interest expenses BB 53 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38(a)) &K E A T (H3E38(a)) (816) -
Exchange differences EH Z5E (18) =
At 31 December 2019 R-—ZB—hE+=-—A=+—H 658 9,682
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its financial risk and takes actions to mitigate such risk.
The Group adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and seeks to limit the Group’s exposure to
these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

There has been no change to the type of the Group's
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

41.

ZENFFHR HEERERERAR

BHEREERAAEENE

AEBAREBBXEHERFTRRERE
AERERES R T AMAEN KRR - &
TR B FE T 5 L B (B 3 SN el e e ) 2R
k) - EERRMREIERR

AEEEGRBERARTMEEEMHR
b2 - WERERTTENRIR A AR - REEHE
B I 7 T BRER R AR ST RS - BT
BAEEAZ Z HERBBRERE - EF
N kAEEESBERRARIHBR

AEBEMSRERTIARR 2 BENEE
BERFERRARZ A EZEE)
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. MEEBEERAABENE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS ()
(Continued)
41.1 Categories of financial assets and 1.1 SRMEERKB/ZER
liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated e MR REM 2 REEY

EATERNzEREENCRAE:

statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

164

2019 2018
S = \F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FHIT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised 1R A EN S RIEE
cost
— Trade receivables —EWE SRR 5,323 6,524
— Other receivables and — Hofth FE R IE 2
deposits E& 14,490 13,864
— Cash and bank balances — B RIBITER 25,994 27,131
Financial assets at FVOCI BRARBEFAREMBMEZEKREN
(non-recycling) SREE (T EE)
— Unlisted private equity —JEEMAABREES
fund 476 -
— Unlisted equity —JEEMBRAEE
investments 18,117 11,926
64,400 59,445
Financial liabilities cRaE
Financial liabilities measured 1R A EN S RIBE
at amortised cost
- Trade payables —ERHE SRR 1,076 572
— Other payables and —HthENRIBERIERER
accrued charges 6,051 11,566
— Amounts due to directors —ENESIE 9,682 20,785
- Lease liabilities -fEal 658 -
17,467 32,923

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

41.2

41.3

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk arise primarily from its
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
United States Dollars (“US$"”) and RMB. These
are not the functional currencies of the group
entities to which these transactions relate. As the
financial assets and liabilities denominated in US$
and RMB are insignificant, the exposure to foreign
currency risk is considered minimal.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises
primarily from bank balances and lease liabilities.

The exposure to interest rates for the Group's
bank balances and lease liabilities is considered
immaterial.

BHEREERAAEENE

(%)

41.2

41.3

S /2 B

SINEE R 5 I (E R B T B 2N & B
TRAZAABEXKERKRRERE
HBERB 2R © AREAZ 25
ERRREEETZUET(ET]
EAREFEZEREERAE -
HEEBW IS RMERH 2 AE
BERZINGEEYE - MRUETR
ARBHEZEREERABL T
ER - BUKR ZSMNERBRIRAR R 1R
K -

IR

MEEBESRIEZ AR EES
RenERml MM REEMHRK
BeEBR - ARENNERREER
KERTEALHERRE -

AEBRTFAMEERBRAR
ZHMEREBIAEKX -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41.

T NF+_H=1T—HILFE

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

41.4 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty

166

to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and from its investing
activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for
the components of the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2019 and 2018
is the carrying amount as disclosed in note 41.1.

(1) Trade receivables and contract assets

Management has a credit policy in place
for approving the credit limits and the
exposures to credit risk are monitored
such that any outstanding debtors are
reviewed and followed up on an ongoing
basis. The Group's policy is to deal only
with creditworthy counterparties. Payment
record of customers is closely monitored.
Customers of IT Products and Services
with balances that are more than 90
days overdue are required to settled all
outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

Trade receivables and contract assets are
written off (i.e. derecognised) when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

The Group has certain concentration of
credit risk in respect of trade receivables
as 54% (2018: 8%) of the total trade
receivables was due from a customer.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019

BEERBEERAAEETE

(%)

41.4 SERR

EERRESRIAZRZGHFR
EREERTAZGRRETHEASL
MEAEERZP BRI AR -
AEBMAZHEERREIERE
RER— ﬂ“**@ﬂ%ﬂﬂﬁ%}f‘#ﬁ
FEERKEEKRERD -

AEBRR-_F-NFR_F-N
FH+A=+—RZEaHBRR
KMERBOMAR 2EHEER
PR RAREE - RERMEA -

(i) EWE BRRARBHIEE

BEEREEERRAEL]
EERE  BEEZLRE
EREREEEENEBTA
UERAERZNEERR -
$%@ﬂﬁﬁ@ih§$%
MBF RS - EP XA
BXBTYER - BrE
BENLTHAZEMMXRE
kRBEFEEBEZIR
BEEMRER T A BERE—
FEE - ARE-—RIES
BEPBUSERERM

BUESERRGHNEER
& 1 T8 B X W [ B 8N
(ANBURRERR) °

AEEERKESRRGEEA

FTEFREERR  AEKE
SRR BEENBA% (2T —
NE  8%)BR—REF -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. IEBREERAAEBEE

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#)

(Continued)

41.4 Credit risk (Continued) 41.4 FERRKE)

(i) Trade receivables and contract assets (i) JEWE SRR A K EE
(Continued) (&)
Trade receivables and contract assets that BRI RBERNNERE S
are individually considered to be significant EREEHNEED BBEELD
have been separately assessed for ECL. TEEEEEBEN N - A5EH
The Group makes periodic assessments BREEFPFHSERESE -
on the recoverability of the receivables BEAE AR R
based on background and reputation of FRIB R AT Y (B 1 TE HRAE T AT
the customers, historical settlements and o REBEEZZT-—NF+=
past experience. During the year ended 31 A=T—HILHE  &84&
December 2019, contract assets amounted 525,000 ( ZF—N
to HK$525,000 (2018: nil) were individually F | ) ERBUER T AN
written off in full. i o
The Group has applied the simplified RIBEBRBFHEREERFE9
approach to assess the ECL as prescribed RHRE - NEBEEAMI
by HKFRS 9. To measure the ECL, trade FENFHETEBEEEE -
receivables and contract assets have REITETEHEEEE - BK
been grouped based on shared credit risk BESERERARENEECRE
characteristics and the past due days. HEEFERBREFHLEEHX
In calculating the ECL rates, the Group HoM - NETEEHREES
considers historical elements and forward BRE  AEBEZERESTT
looking elements. =ERAIEMTE -
Assessed lifetime ECL rate of contract BRI ES B E ARSI
assets and trade receivables is minimal for BRI - BEHHE S E
all ageing bands as there was no recent RIRBRAVNEEREBWE S
history of default and continuous payments RN GIEREEREE
were received. The Group determined BER REEZZ—NERK
that the ECL allowance in respect of —E-NEFE+TZH=1T—H
trade receivables and contract assets for LEFE BREFPHEE
the years ended 31 December 2019 and BRUE\ERNE L  ~EH
2018 is minimal as there has not been a MEKRBIERREGHNEE
significant change in credit quality of the ROTBREEEERER
customers. Ao
“E-NFFER HEERERERAE 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

for the year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

41.

168

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

41.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at
amortised cost include other receivables
and deposits (excluding prepayments and
value-added tax recoverable) and cash
and bank balances. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the
Group would make periodic collective and
individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records and past
experience as well as current external
information. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In these
regards, the credit risk of other receivables
and deposits are considered to be low.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
other receivables amounted to HK$9,000
(2018: HK$126,000) were individually
impaired in full. Except for these balances
in other receivables (excluding prepayments
and value-added tax recoverable), the
Group has assessed that the ECL for other
receivables and deposits are minimal under
the 12-months ECL method as there is no
significant increase in credit risk on these
other receivables and deposits (excluding
prepayments and value-added tax recoverable)
and the exposure to default is minimal after
considering the undertaking provided to some
of the receivables during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

The credit risk for bank balances is considered
to be insignificant because the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratings.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019

T NF+_H=1T—HILFE

MBREBREERAAEBESR

(ir)

fin

1.4 SERKRE)

B iE A G E A2
H R @ ER AT EN SR
BERBREMBWRIE R
(T BEBENKIE R AT
EHEER) KRR S RIRTT
ﬁ%ﬁ\ c REFIRER A EER
 AEBEEESRES
?%ZZE%&}EEZ“‘%@LX&
mﬁﬁﬁl\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁk
TR K32 & w0 R] Y [B] 14 TE
TR RERFFE o R
EHMEERR - BARIEL
Eiiﬁﬁiﬂtﬂﬁz@@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ °
UL E - E KT
k& ZEER %EZ%EF%?T
& -

REZE-ZT—NAF+=-A=
+— amir L B U X
189,000 (= E— N\ F :
126,000 70 ) B & & & Al
FLURME ° BRZEE MR
RBEH(TEETENMN R
NaT i e EE $$@¢
HEE - RAHEMEIER
&EéZﬁ%Ef%ﬁmﬁ
1218 ATE S (s BB 1BA AT
HEM  REERZEEM
FRRERZES(TRIEE
B R EEER) 2
EERRIEKNE - BRE
EE-NFRZZE-NF
+—A=+—HLEE =
JE B B 9 B U SR TE i Y
i AZWENRR AIE
& o

AR ZE T REBEIMNE
SRR RIFEERTT
BIRITHERZEER R R
RITEKX o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. B¥EBEERAAEBEFE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (4)
(Continued)
41.5 Liquidity risk 41.5 RETERERS

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing
obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain
an appropriate level of liquid assets to meet its
liguidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities as at 31
December 2019 and 2018. When the creditor has
a choice of when the liability is settled, the liability
is included on the basis of the earliest date on
when the Group can be required to pay. Where the
settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group is committed to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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41.

170

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. KRB EERAAEBEFTE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(Continued)
41.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 415 REMERER(E)
The contractual maturity analysis below is based UTAHERITINEREREE
on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial ZARBBRMIRESRE °
liabilities.
Within  Over 1 year Total
1 year or but within undiscounted Carrying
on demand 5 years amount amount
—ER% —FHE
RER EBEREFR RERH A IREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET
2019 —E-NF
Trade payables FERE B IRR 1,076 - 1,076 1,076
Other payables and H b e kI8 &
accrued charges JEIRE R 6,051 = 6,051 6,051
Amounts due to ANEE e
directors 9,682 - 9,682 9,682
Lease liabilities HEBR 477 208 685 658
17,286 208 17,494 17,467
Within ~ Over 1 year Total
1 year or but within  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 5 years amount amount
—FRK —FAE
REK BRFA REHIR B 5 IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& & THET FHET
2018 —TN\F
Trade payables BB ZER 572 = 572 572
Other payables and A RS RUE K
accrued charges EREH 11,566 - 11,566 11,566
Amounts due to JERTESRFE
directors 20,785 - 20,785 20,785
32,923 - 32,923 32,923

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. VX EREER AAEBEFTE

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (&)

(Continued)

41.6 Fair value measurements of financial 416 ESRMIAENQIAEEE
instruments
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair REMBHRARFEAREBERE
value in the consolidated statement of financial NEMmEERBEBRA D ABLALBE
position are grouped into three levels of a fair EBHEH=ESFH - —@ASFHERT
value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based ERASBNTEBREREEREET
on the observability and significance of inputs to FWOT

the measurements, as follows:

. Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . F—H:AREERBER
markets for identical assets and liabilities. TERTIGHHRE CREHR) -

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices ° F_H GEENXBEHR
included within Level 1 that are observable ZdMETEENGAY
for the asset or liability, either directly B(E—HRABTERNRER
or indirectly, and not using significant GN) - RARBEEBENEX
unobservable inputs. Bl A SR o

. Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for . E=H: AEXBENER
the asset or liability. EAERG AEUE -

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which SELMEES B EEREMES A

the financial asset or liability is categorised in its MNARBEERANSER - HER

entirety based on the lowest level of input that is HAnBEFZEAEERERNE

significant to the fair value measurement. RE R ABIE -

ZENFFHR HEERERERAR
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for the year ended 31 December 2019 E{E2 —F— W F+_-HA=+—HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

41.6 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value on
a recurring basis are grouped into the fair value

hierarchy as follows:

41.

BEEREERAAEENE

(%)

416 SRMIENAABEFEE)

UREUREERAABENENS
MEEFACABEEBRWAT :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H et F=HR Bzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-h&
+=A=+-H
Financial assets at FVOCI (non-  RAAZBESAEM
recycling) 2ENENSREE
(FArElE)
- Unlisted private equity fund —FLETMRARE
% - - 476 476
- Unlisted equity investments —FEMRAERE - - 18,117 18,117
- - 18,593 18,593
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\f
TZA=+-H
Financial assets at FVOCI (non- &AL BE A
recycling) 2ANENSREE
(FArglsE)
- Unlisted private equity fund —FETRARE
¢ - - = =
- Unlisted equity investments - ETRARE - - 11,926 11,926
- - 11,926 11,926
There were no transfers between Level 1 and BHEZZ-NFRZE—N\F+=

Level 2 during the years ended 31 December

2019 and 2018.
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e B RAR M

for the year ended 31 December 2019 2 —ZFE—NF+_-HA=1+—HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41.

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

41.6 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)
The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the

Group's financial instruments classified within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

BHEREERAAEENE

(%)

416 SRMIENAAEBETEE)

DEBANEBEERE=ZFRNLE
BT ANKEESRDT

2019 2018
S = \F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHIT
Unlisted private equity fund (LITRAREZEES
Fair value at 1 January R—A—BHAREBE = =
Fair value gain recognised in other RE M2 EUWESHEZRH AL
comprehensive income L& 476 i
Fair value at 31 December R+ZA=+—B®WAr{EE 476 =
Unlisted equity investments FLEHRERE
Fair value at 1 January R—A—BRQAEE 11,926 12,545
Reclassification of remaining BN EBE BN TR
interest in Excel HK from RN —EE QAR R
interest in an associate to EHNOBEREAAEBE
financial asset at FVOCI (non- STAEMZEMENS R
recycling) (note 17) BE(NA28) (MF17) = 860
Fair value gain/(loss) recognised in REM 2 EKREAN R AL BE
other comprehensive income Wz (E518) 6,191 (439)
Sales proceeds SHEFTS IR - (1,040
Fair value at 31 December RT-—A=+—HHAAEE 18,117 11,926
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41.

174

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

41.6 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

Fair value gain/(loss) on unlisted equity
investments and unlisted private equity fund
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and included under “Fair value reserve — non-
recycling”.

There have been no transfers into or out of Level
3 during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the fair value
of the unlisted private equity fund is measured
using valuation techniques with reference to
the net assets values. The directors believe that
the change in fair value (which is included in
other comprehensive income) derived from the
valuation technique is reasonable and is the most
appropriate value at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of an
unlisted equity investment has been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out by Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers, using the adjusted net assets
method as the major assets are leasehold land,
construction in progress and investment properties
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation. The
value of those major assets has been adjusted
to their fair value at the reporting date using
market comparison method, residual method and
income capitalisation method for the purpose of
determining the Group's share of adjusted net
assets value and fair value of the investment. The
significant unobservable input includes lack of
marketability discount of 25%. The higher the lack
of marketability discount would result in lower fair
value.
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for the year ended 31 December 2019 BtE2 —E— W F+-HA=+—HIFFE

41.

42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

41.6 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of
the unlisted equity investments is measured
using valuation techniques with reference to
the net assets value. The directors believe that
the change in fair value (which is included in
other comprehensive income) derived from the
valuation technique is reasonable and is the most
appropriate value at the end of the reporting
period.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to
ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide an adequate return for shareholders by
pricing goods and services commensurately with the
level of risks.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and
raises new debt financing.

41.

42.

ZENFFHR HEERERERAR
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43.

176

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
DATE

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“the COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the PRC, which
has affected the business and economic activities of the
Group to certain extent. Pending on the development
of the COVID-19 outbreak subsequent to the date of
these financial statements, further changes in economic
conditions for the Group arising thereof may have impact
on the financial results of the Group. The overall financial
effect of the above cannot be reliably estimated as of
the date of these consolidated financial statements. The
Group will pay close attention to the development of the
COVID-19 outbreak and continue to evaluate its impact
on the financial position and operating results of the
Group.
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